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TEN YEARS FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Year ended

Share 
capital*

(` in Lakhs)

Reserves and 
surplus**
(` in Lakhs)

Net worth**
(` in Lakhs)

Revenue from 
operaƟons 

(net)
(re-grouped)

(` in Lakhs)

Net profit 
for the year
(` in Lakhs)

Earnings 
per ordinary 

share 
(F.V. of ` 10/- 

each) 
(`)

Book value 
per ordinary 

share
 (`)

Dividend 
per ordinary 

share
 (`)

31-03-2007 451.48    17,722.81 18,174.29    15,617.51      2,281.57            50.58 402.87 8.00 

31-03-2008 451.48    22,321.94 22,773.42    17,937.04      2,199.10            48.75 504.81 10.00 

31-03-2009    451.48    23,150.95 23,602.43    18,810.56      1,197.56            26.55 523.19 6.00 

31-03-2010  451.48    24,327.30 24,778.78    17,479.49      1,640.98            36.38 549.27 8.00 

31-03-2011  451.48    26,543.93 26,995.41    30,738.47      2,883.62            63.92 598.40 12.00 

31-03-2012 451.48    28,714.16 29,165.64    29,232.80      2,886.91            63.99 646.51 13.00 

31-03-2013 451.48    30,962.77 31,414.25    28,905.85      3,071.42            68.08 696.35 15.00 

31-03-2014 451.48    32,817.67 33,269.15    27,843.13      2,680.38            59.42 737.47 15.00 

31-03-2015 451.48    35,243.36 35,694.84    26,699.53      3,458.09            76.65 791.24 17.00 

31-03-2016  451.48    41,357.95 41,809.43    34,303.80      3,647.47            80.85 926.78 17.00 

* Share capital includes amount forfeited amounƟng to ` 0.35 Lakhs.

** Reserves and surplus and Net worth include revaluaƟon reserves arising on revaluaƟon of certain fixed assets.
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NOTICE
TO THE MEMBERS

NoƟce is hereby given that the Annual General MeeƟng (AGM) of the Members of Cheviot Company Limited will be held 
at The Sitaram Seksaria Auditorium of BharaƟya Bhasha Parishad, 36A, Shakespeare Sarani, 4th Floor, Kolkata - 700 017 on 
Friday, 29th July, 2016 at 11 a.m. to transact the following business :

Ordinary Business :

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2016 
and the reports of the Board of directors and auditors thereon.

2. To confirm the payment of interim dividend on ordinary shares for the financial year ended 31st March, 2016.

3. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal (holding DIN 00060314), who reƟres by rotaƟon and, being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To raƟfy the appointment of M/s. Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants (ICAI RegistraƟon No. 302023E), as statutory 
auditors of the Company, as approved by the members at the annual general meeƟng of the Company held on 
8th August, 2014, from the conclusion of this annual general meeƟng Ɵll the conclusion of the next annual general 
meeƟng on a remuneraƟon to be mutually agreed upon with the Board of directors for the financial year 2016-2017. 

Special Business :

5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resoluƟon as a Special ResoluƟon :

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 14 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with The Companies (IncorporaƟon) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modificaƟon(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the Ɵme being in force), the draŌ new set of ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of the Company placed before the 
meeƟng, duly iniƟaled by the Chairman and Managing Director for the purpose of idenƟficaƟon, be and are hereby 
approved and adopted as the new set of ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of the Company in subsƟtuƟon and to the enƟre 
exclusion of the exisƟng ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of the Company. 

 FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of directors of the Company including CommiƩee thereof be and is hereby 
authorised to do all such acts and things and to take all such steps as may be necessary to give effect to this resoluƟon.”

6. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resoluƟon as a Special ResoluƟon :

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SecƟons 196, 197, 203 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Schedule V thereto and The Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modificaƟon(s) or re-enactment thereof for the Ɵme 
being in force), consent of the Company be and is hereby granted to the re-appointment of Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal 
(Mr. Kejriwal) (holding DIN 00060314), as WholeƟme Director of the Company for a further period of two years with 
effect from 1st June, 2016, whose office shall be liable to determinaƟon by reƟrement of directors by rotaƟon, on the 
terms and condiƟons as to remuneraƟon and otherwise as set out in the leƩer of re-appointment (a draŌ of which 
iniƟaled by the Chairman and Managing Director for idenƟficaƟon was laid on the table) to be issued to Mr. Kejriwal 
and also given in the statement annexed to this noƟce.

 FURTHER RESOLVED THAT in the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the aforesaid 
period of two years, the Company will pay to Mr. Kejriwal remuneraƟon by way of salary and perquisites not exceeding 
the ceiling laid down in SecƟon II of Part II of Schedule V to the Act or any modificaƟon(s) or re-enactment thereof as 
minimum remuneraƟon, subject to such approvals as may be required.”

7. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resoluƟon as a Special ResoluƟon :

 “RESOLVED THAT in terms of SecƟon 180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of directors of the Company including CommiƩee 
thereof to create such charge, mortgage and hypothecaƟon in addiƟon to the exisƟng charge, mortgage and 
hypothecaƟon created by the Company, on the movable and immovable properƟes of the Company wheresoever 
situate, both present and future and the whole of the undertaking of the Company and/or to give the power to 
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NOTICE (Contd.)

take over the management of the business and concern of the Company in certain events (whether such power is 
contained in the documents creaƟng the hypothecaƟon, mortgage and/or charge or otherwise) to or in favour of 
Export Import Bank of India (EXIM Bank) to secure Rupee Term Loan not exceeding ` 1 Crore (Rupees one crore only) 
sancƟoned by EXIM Bank and in favour of State Bank of India (SBI) to secure working capital faciliƟes not exceeding 
` 30 Crores (Rupees thirty crores only) sancƟoned by SBI together with interest thereon at the agreed rates, compound 
interest, addiƟonal interest, liquidated damages, premia on prepayment or on redempƟon, costs, charges, expenses 
and other monies payable by the Company to EXIM Bank and SBI under their respecƟve sancƟon leƩers in such form 
and manner and with such ranking for priority and at such Ɵmes as the Board of directors of the Company including 
CommiƩee thereof may deem fit.

 FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of directors of the Company including CommiƩee thereof be and is hereby 
authorised to execute security documents with Export Import Bank of India and State Bank of India for creaƟng 
mortgage and/or charge and to do all such acts and things and to take all such steps as may be necessary to give effect 
to this resoluƟon.” 

8. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resoluƟon as an Ordinary ResoluƟon :

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of RegulaƟon 17 of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 and the provisions of SecƟons 197, 198 and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with The Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modificaƟon(s) or re-enactment thereof for the Ɵme being in force) 
and the ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of the Company, consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the payment 
of commission for a period of five years commencing from 1st April, 2017 to the non-execuƟve directors, including 
independent directors of the Company (i.e. directors other than the Managing Directors and / or WholeƟme Directors) 
as may be decided by the Board of directors from Ɵme to Ɵme, provided that the total commission payable to the non-
execuƟve directors, including independent directors of the Company shall not exceed one percent of the net profits of 
the Company for that financial year as computed in the manner specified under SecƟon 198 of the Act, with authority 
to the Board of directors to determine the manner and proporƟon in which the amount be distributed among non-
execuƟve directors, including independent directors of the Company.”

9. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resoluƟon as an Ordinary ResoluƟon :

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modificaƟon(s) or re-enactment thereof for the Ɵme being 
in force), the remuneraƟon of ` 32,500/- plus applicable taxes and re-imbursement of out of pocket expenses payable 
to M/s D. Radhakrishnan & Co., Cost Accountants (RegistraƟon No. 000018), who has been appointed by the Board 
of directors of the Company as cost auditor to conduct an audit of the cost accounƟng records maintained by the 
Company for the year ending 31st March, 2017 be and is hereby raƟfied.” 

Kolkata, 25th May, 2016 By Order of the Board,
CIN : L65993WB1897PLC001409 CHEVIOT COMPANY LIMITED
Registered Office: CS Aditya Banerjee
24, Park Street, Company Secretary 
‘Magma House’, (9th Floor),       
Kolkata - 700 016
Website : www.groupcheviot.net
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NOTES :

1. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Register of the Company will remain closed from Saturday, 
23rd July, 2016 to Friday, 29th July, 2016 (both days inclusive).

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ALSO ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND 
AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF. A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. The Proxy in order 
to be effecƟve, must be duly stamped, completed, signed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company 
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the AGM. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not 
exceeding fiŌy (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. In case 
a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voƟng rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other member.

3. Members/Proxies are requested to bring the aƩendance slip along with their copy of Annual Report with them at the 
AGM.

4. In case of joint holders aƩending the AGM, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be enƟtled 
to vote.

5. Dividend which remain unpaid / unclaimed over a period of seven years will have to be transferred by the Company to 
“Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund” of the Central Government under SecƟons 205A & 205C of the Companies 
Act, 1956. Accordingly, all unpaid/unclaimed amounts in respect of dividends paid by the Company for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2008 have been transferred to the said Fund. Unpaid / unclaimed dividend for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2009 will become due for transfer during August, 2016. Shareholders are advised to encash 
the unpaid dividend warrants before transfer to the above referred Fund. 

 Pursuant to the provisions of Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund (Uploading of informaƟon regarding unpaid 
and unclaimed amounts lying with companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and 
unclaimed amounts lying with the Company as on 13th August, 2015 (date of previous year AGM) on the website of 
the Company (www.groupcheviot.net), as also on the website of Ministry of Corporate Affairs.  

6. Members are hereby informed that SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has made it mandatory for all the 
listed companies to make cash payments through electronic payment modes to the investors. It is further directed that 
in case electronic payment is rejected or returned, the Company shall mandatorily print the bank account details of the 
investor on payment instrument. Members are requested to provide their updated bank account parƟculars alloƩed 
aŌer implementaƟon of CBS to enable the Company to electronically credit dividend directly in their respecƟve bank 
accounts.

 Members holding the Company’s shares in dematerialised form are requested to inƟmate all changes relaƟng to their 
bank account details, change in their registered address, e-mail ID, nominaƟon, NaƟonal Electronic Clearing Service 
(NECS), Electronic Clearing Service (ECS) mandates etc. to their respecƟve Depository ParƟcipants (DPs), if they have 
not done so already. Members holding the Company’s shares in physical form are requested to inƟmate such changes 
to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s Maheshwari DatamaƟcs Pvt. Ltd.

7. Members desirous of geƫng any informaƟon about the accounts and operaƟons of the Company are requested to 
address their queries to the Company at least 10 (Ten) days in advance of the meeƟng i.e. by 19th July, 2016, so that 
proper informaƟon can be made available at the AGM.

8. Members who hold shares in dematerialised form are requested to bring their Client ID and DP numbers for prompt 
idenƟficaƟon while recording aƩendance at the AGM.

9. Members who hold shares in physical form in mulƟple folios in idenƟcal names or joint accounts in the same order 
or names, are requested to send the share cerƟficates to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent for 
consolidaƟon into a single folio.

10. Members who are yet to provide required parƟculars for the purpose of maintaining records in the new format 
of Register of Members pursuant to SecƟon 88(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 3(1) of the Companies 
(Management and AdministraƟon) Rules, 2014 are requested to inƟmate following informaƟon to the Company’s 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, as may be applicable for respecƟve members :

NOTICENOTICE (Contd.)
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 I. E-mail ID; II. Permanent Account Number (PAN) or Corporate IdenƟficaƟon Number (CIN); III. Father's/ Mother's/
Spouse Name; IV. Unique IdenƟficaƟon Number (Aadhar No.); V. OccupaƟon; VI. Status; VII. NaƟonality; VIII. In case 
member is a minor, name of guardian and date of birth of minor member; IX. Name and address of nominee (in Form 
SH-13).

11. Brief details of director seeking re-appointment at the ensuing AGM :

 Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal (Mr. Kejriwal), (holding DIN 00060314), who was appointed as a WholeƟme Director of the 
Company at the AGM held on 8th August, 2014, reƟres from the Board by rotaƟon at the forthcoming AGM, and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 InformaƟon as required under RegulaƟon 36 of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015 are provided as under :

 Mr. Kejriwal, aged 73 years, is a commerce graduate and holds a bachelor degree of law. Mr. Kejriwal has a long 
associaƟon with the Company. He has wide range of experience in management, markeƟng and administraƟon. The 
Company will be benefiƩed by his rich experience and knowledge.

 None of the directors on the Board of the Company are related to Mr. Kejriwal.

 Mr. Kejriwal does not hold directorship and / or membership of CommiƩees of the Board in any other listed Companies.

 Number of Share held in the Company : 300 Shares.

12. VoƟng through electronic means :

 I. In compliance with the provisions of SecƟon 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, The Companies (Management 
and AdministraƟon) Rules, 2014, as amended, and RegulaƟon 44 of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide the facility to members to exercise their 
right to vote on resoluƟons set forth in this noƟce by electronic means from a place other than venue of the AGM 
(“remote e-voƟng”). The remote e-voƟng service will be provided by NaƟonal SecuriƟes Depository Limited 
(NSDL).

 II. The facility for voƟng through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM venue and the members aƩending 
the AGM who have not cast their vote by remote e-voƟng shall be able to exercise their right to cast vote through 
ballot paper. 

 III. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voƟng prior to the AGM may also aƩend the AGM but shall 
not be enƟtled to cast their vote again. 

 IV. The remote e-voƟng period shall commence on Tuesday, 26th July, 2016 (10:00 a.m.) and end on Thursday, 
28th July, 2016 (5:00 p.m.). During this period, members of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or 
in dematerialised form, as on the cut-off date i.e. Friday, 22nd July, 2016, may cast their vote by remote e-voƟng. 
The remote e-voƟng module shall be disabled by NSDL for voƟng thereaŌer. Once the vote on a resoluƟon is cast 
by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

 V. The process and manner for remote e-voƟng are as under :

  A. In case a member receives an email from NSDL [for members whose email IDs are registered with the 
Company/Depository ParƟcipant(s)] :

   i. Open the PDF file viz; “Cheviot Company Limited remote e-voƟng.pdf” aƩached to the e-mail with 
your Client ID or Folio No. as password. The said PDF file contains your user ID and password for 
remote e-voƟng. Please note that the password is an iniƟal password.

   ii. Launch internet browser by typing the following URL: hƩps://www.evoƟng.nsdl.com/

   iii. Click on Shareholder – Login

   iv. Put user ID and password as iniƟal password noted in step (i) above. Click Login.

   v. Password change menu appear. Change the password with new password of your choice with minimum 
8 digits/characters or combinaƟon thereof. Note new password. It is strongly recommended not to 
share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidenƟal.

NOTICE (Contd.)NOTICE (Contd.)
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   vi. Home page of remote e-voƟng will open. Click on remote e-voƟng: AcƟve VoƟng Cycles.

   vii. Select “EVEN” of “Cheviot Company Limited”.

   viii. Now you are ready for remote e-voƟng as Cast Vote page opens.

   ix. Cast your vote by selecƟng appropriate opƟon and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted.

   x. Upon confirmaƟon, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

   xi. Once you have confirmed your vote on the resoluƟon, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

   xii. InsƟtuƟonal shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned 
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board ResoluƟon/ Authority leƩer etc. together with aƩested 
specimen signature of the duly authorised signatory(ies) who are authorised to vote, to the ScruƟnizer 
through e-mail to evoƟng@chevjute.com with a copy marked to evoƟng@nsdl.co.in.

  B. In case a member receives physical copy of the noƟce of AGM [for members whose email IDs are not 
registered with the Company/Depository ParƟcipant(s) or requesƟng physical copy]:

   (i) A separate leƩer containing remote e-voƟng parƟculars together with noƟce shall be despatched at 
the address of the member as per records available with the Company. The remote e-voƟng parƟculars 
shall include : 

    EVEN (Remote e-voƟng Event Number);                              USER ID;                              PASSWORD 

   (ii) Please follow all steps from Sl. No. (ii) to Sl. No. (xii) above, to cast vote.

 VI. In case of any query, you may refer the frequently asked quesƟons (FAQs) for members and remote e-voƟng 
user manual for members available at the download secƟon of www.evoƟng.nsdl.com or call on toll free 
no. : 1800-222-990.

 VII. If you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voƟng then you can use your exisƟng user ID and password 
for casƟng your vote.

 VIII. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may be used 
for sending future communicaƟon(s).

 IX. The voƟng rights of members shall be in proporƟon to their shares of the paid up ordinary share capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date, Friday, 22nd July, 2016.

 X. Any person, who acquires share(s) of the Company and becomes member of the Company aŌer despatch of the 
noƟce of AGM and holding shares as on the cut-off date, Friday, 22nd July, 2016, may obtain the User ID and 
password by sending a request at evoƟng@nsdl.co.in 

  However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voƟng then you can use your exisƟng User ID 
and password for casƟng your vote. If you forgot your password or your login is disabled upon five unsuccessful 
aƩempts to key-in the correct password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot user ID/password” opƟon 
available on www.evoƟng.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the following toll free no. : 1800-222-990.

 XI. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained 
by the depositories as on the cut-off date, Friday, 22nd July, 2016 only shall be enƟtled to avail the facility of 
remote e-voƟng as well as voƟng at the AGM through ballot paper.

 XII. Ms. Suhana Islam, a pracƟsing advocate at CalcuƩa High Court, has been appointed as the ScruƟnizer to scruƟnize 
the voƟng and remote e-voƟng process in a fair and transparent manner.

 XIII. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resoluƟons on which voƟng is to be held, allow 
voƟng with the assistance of ScruƟnizer, by use of ballot paper for all those members who are present at the 
AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voƟng facility.

NOTICE (Contd.)
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 XIV. The ScruƟnizer shall, aŌer the conclusion of voƟng at the AGM, first count the votes cast at the AGM and 
thereaŌer unblock the votes cast through remote e-voƟng in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the 
employment of the Company and shall make, not later than forty-eight hours of the conclusion of the AGM, a 
consolidated scruƟnizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person 
authorised by him in wriƟng, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voƟng forthwith.

 XV. The results declared alongwith the report of the ScruƟnizer shall be placed on the website of the Company 
(www.groupcheviot.net) and on the website of NSDL immediately aŌer the declaraƟon of results by the Chairman 
or a person authorized by him in wriƟng. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE Limited.

13. The noƟce of the AGM, inter-alia, indicaƟng the process and manner of remote e-voƟng alongwith AƩendance Slip, 
Proxy Form and the Annual Report for 2016 are available on the Company’s website (www.groupcheviot.net). 

14. Route-map to the venue of the AGM is annexed for the convenience of the members.

15. All documents referred to in the accompanying noƟce and the statement annexed thereto shall be open for inspecƟon 
at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours prior to the date of the AGM between 
10.00 a.m. and 12.00 noon and will also be available for inspecƟon at the AGM. 

16. The statement pursuant to SecƟon 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, relaƟng to the special business set out in the 
noƟce, is annexed hereto. 

STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Item No. 5
The ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of the Company currently in force were adopted in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956. 

With the enactment of Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and its substanƟal SecƟons having come into force, it is now 
expedient to replace the exisƟng ArƟcles of AssociaƟon with new set of ArƟcles of AssociaƟon.

As per the provisions of SecƟon 14 of the Act, alteraƟon of the ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of the Company needs to be approved 
by the members of the Company. 

The proposed new set of ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of the Company may be inspected by any Member at the Registered Office 
of the Company on any working day prior to the date of the meeƟng between 10.00 a.m. and 12.00 noon and will also be 
available for inspecƟon at the AGM.

None of the directors and key managerial personnel of the Company and their relaƟves is concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the resoluƟon. 

The Board of Directors recommend passing of the proposed Special ResoluƟon as set out at Item No. 5 of the noƟce. 

Item No. 6
Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal (Mr. Kejriwal), aged 73 years (holding DIN 00060314) is a commerce graduate and holds a 
bachelor degree in law. He has been associated with the Company for the last several years in his capacity as WholeƟme 
Director. Mr. Kejriwal is a member in stakeholders relaƟonship commiƩee and commiƩee of directors of the Board of 
directors of the Company.

The present term of office of Mr. Kejriwal will expire on 31st May, 2016. In view of his experience and useful contribuƟon 
made to the Company’s growth, the Board of Directors recommend his re-appointment as WholeƟme Director, for a 
further period of two years with effect from 1st June, 2016, whose period of office shall be liable to determinaƟon by 
reƟrement of directors by rotaƟon, on the terms and condiƟons menƟoned in the draŌ leƩer of appointment to be issued to 
Mr. Kejriwal.

The principal terms and condiƟons including the remuneraƟon governing the re-appointment of Mr. Kejriwal are set out 
below :

1. Salary: ` 1,55,000 per month or such other sum not exceeding ` 2,00,000 per month as may be determined by the 
Chairman and Managing Director from Ɵme to Ɵme.
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2. Commission: Commission may be payable at the absolute discreƟon of the Board of such amount as may be approved 
by the Board for each year.

3. Perquisites: The WholeƟme Director shall also be enƟtled to house rent allowance, furnishing allowance, payment of 
medical expenses, leave travel concession for self and family, personal accident insurance, provision of car, telephone 
at residence and any other perquisite as may be decided by the Chairman and Managing Director from Ɵme to Ɵme 
subject to an amount equal to the annual salary. Provision for use of Company car for official purpose and telephone 
at residence (including payment for local calls and long distance official calls) shall not be included in the computaƟon 
of perquisites for the purpose of calculaƟon of the said ceiling. Perquisites shall be evaluated as per Income Tax Rules, 
wherever applicable. The remuneraƟon menƟoned above including the value of the perquisites will be subject to the 
overall ceilings laid down under SecƟon 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with Schedule V thereto.

4.  Mr. Kejriwal shall not be paid any siƫng fee for aƩending the meeƟng of the Board or any commiƩee thereof.

5. In the event that the Company in any financial year during the aforesaid period, has no profit or its profits are 
inadequate, the remuneraƟon payable to Mr. Kejriwal shall not exceed the limits specified in SecƟon II of Part II of 
Schedule V to the Act or any modificaƟon(s) or re-enactment thereof as minimum remuneraƟon, subject to such 
approvals as may be required.

6. Mr. Kejriwal will be reimbursed by the Company of all entertainment and other expenses actually incurred by him in 
connecƟon with the business of the Company subject, however, to such limits as may be fixed by the Chairman and 
Managing Director from Ɵme to Ɵme.

7. Mr. Kejriwal and the Company shall have right to terminate the appointment by giving three months’ prior noƟce in 
wriƟng to the other.

A copy of the draŌ leƩer of re-appointment referred to in the proposed Special ResoluƟon may be inspected by any 
Member at the Registered Office of the Company on any working day prior to the date of the meeƟng between 10.00 a.m. 
and 12.00 noon and will also be available for inspecƟon at the AGM. 

Except Mr. Kejriwal, being an appointee, none of the other directors and key managerial personnel of the Company and 
their relaƟves is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resoluƟon.

The Board of Directors recommend passing of the proposed Special ResoluƟon as set out at Item No. 6 of the noƟce. 

Item No. 7
Export Import Bank of India (EXIM Bank) has sancƟoned a Rupee Term Loan of ` 1.00 crore to the Company under 
its ProducƟon Equipment Finance Programme (PEFP) to part finance the acquisiƟon of equipments purchased by the 
Company vide leƩer bearing reference no. CBG : PEFP-518:70 dated 24.5.2016. The said term loan has to be secured by 
pari-passu first charge on the enƟre fixed assets of the Company, both present and future and pari-passu second charge 
on the enƟre current assets of the Company, both present and future.

Besides, State Bank of India, Commercial Branch, Kolkata (SBI), the Company’s bankers has enhanced the overall working 
capital credit faciliƟes from ` 22.25 crores to ` 30.00 crores vide leƩer bearing reference no. CBK/AMT-08/2015-16/526 
dated 1.2.2016 to be secured by hypothecaƟon of enƟre current assets of the Company including book debts, both present 
and future on first charge basis and further collateral security over the Fixed Assets of the Company on second charge 
basis.

Before creaƟon of the mortgage/charge over the immovable and movable properƟes of the Company as aforesaid in 
favour of EXIM Bank and SBI, it is necessary for the members to pass a special resoluƟon under SecƟon 180(1)(a) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Copies of the leƩer bearing reference no. CBG : PEFP-518:70 dated 24.5.2016 received from EXIM Bank and leƩer bearing 
reference no. CBK/AMT-08/2015-16/526 dated 1.2.2016 received from SBI are open for inspecƟon at the Registered Office 
of the Company between 10.00 A.M. and 12.00 Noon on any working day prior to the date of the AGM.

None of the directors and key managerial personnel of the Company and their relaƟves is concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the resoluƟon. 

The Board of Directors recommend passing of the proposed Special ResoluƟon as set out at Item No. 7 of the noƟce.  
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Item No. 8

At the AGM of the Company held on 28th July, 2011, the members had passed a Special ResoluƟon under SecƟon 
309 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956, approving the payment of commission to 
non-execuƟve directors of the Company, of a sum not exceeding in the aggregate one percent of the net profits of the 
Company computed in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for each of the five financial years of 
the Company commencing from 1st April, 2012, as may be determined by the Board of directors. The said approval is valid 
upto 31st March, 2017. 

Keeping in view the role, responsibiliƟes and duƟes of the non-execuƟve directors, including independent directors of 
the Company (i.e. directors other than the Managing Directors and / or WholeƟme Directors), it is proposed to authorise 
the Board of Directors of the Company to conƟnue the payment of commission to the non-execuƟve directors, including 
independent directors of the Company. The Board of Directors will determine each year, the specific amount to be paid 
as commission to the non-execuƟve directors, including independent directors of the Company which shall not exceed 
one percent of the net profits of the Company for that year, as computed in the manner referred to in SecƟon 198 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

In view of the above, the members approval is being sought pursuant to SecƟons 197, 198 and other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013, if any, for the payment of commission to the non-execuƟve directors, including independent 
directors of the Company for a period of five years commencing from 1st April, 2017. The payment of commission would 
be in addiƟon to the siƫng fees payable to non-execuƟve directors, including independent directors of the Company for 
aƩending MeeƟngs of the Board and CommiƩees thereof. 

Save and except all the non-execuƟve directors, including independent directors of the Company, none of the other 
directors and key managerial personnel of the Company and their relaƟves is concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in the resoluƟon.

The Board of Directors recommend passing of the proposed Ordinary ResoluƟon as set out at Item No. 8 of the noƟce.

Item No. 9

As recommended by audit commiƩee, Board of directors had appointed M/s D. Radhakrishnan & Co., Cost Accountants 
(RegistraƟon No. 000018), being eligible and having sought re-appointment, as cost auditor of the Company, for 
a remuneraƟon of ` 32,500 plus applicable taxes and re-imbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred by them to 
conduct an audit of the cost accounƟng records maintained by the Company for the current financial year beginning from 
1st April, 2016 and ending on 31st March 2017.

In terms of SecƟon 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the 
aforesaid remuneraƟon is required to be raƟfied by the members. 

None of the directors and key managerial personnel of the Company and their relaƟves is concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the resoluƟon.

The Board of Directors recommend passing of the proposed Ordinary ResoluƟon as set out at Item No. 9 of the noƟce. 

Kolkata, 25th May, 2016 By Order of the Board,
CIN : L65993WB1897PLC001409 CHEVIOT COMPANY LIMITED
Registered Office: CS Aditya Banerjee
24, Park Street, Company Secretary
‘Magma House’, (9th Floor),       
Kolkata - 700 016
Website : www.groupcheviot.net
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Dear Members,
The directors have pleasure in presenƟng their Annual Report on the business and operaƟons of the Company together 
with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016.
1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY

ParƟculars For the year ended
31st March, 2016

For the year ended
31st March, 2015

OperaƟng results aŌer charging depreciaƟon and amorƟsaƟon show a profit of  3,826.64  1,967.38 
Add : Other income  1,271.66  2,166.73 
Add: ExcepƟonal item :
Provision against indirect taxes refundable wriƩen back

  
 -    97.45 

Profit before tax  5,098.30  4,231.56 
From which have been deducted :

Current tax  1,453.00  749.00 
Tax for earlier years (net)  (0.39)  1.10 
Deferred tax  (1.78)  23.37 

Profit aŌer tax 3,647.47  3,458.09 
Surplus as per last balance sheet  535.07  500.02 
Making a total of 4,182.54  3,958.11 
Which has been appropriated by the directors as under :

Interim dividend 766.91  -   
Tax on interim dividend 156.13  -   
Proposed dividend -  766.91 
Tax on proposed dividend -  156.13 
Transferred to SEZ re-investment reserve account  25.00  350.00 
Transferred to general reserve 2,650.00  2,150.00 
Balance surplus carried to balance sheet  584.50  535.07 

4,182.54  3,958.11 

2. DIVIDEND  

 Your directors consider that the interim dividend of ` 17/- per ordinary share of face value of ` 10/- each (i.e. 170%) 
paid for the year ended 31st March, 2016 is reasonable and therefore do not recommend a final dividend for the year. 

3. TRANSFER TO RESERVE

 Directors propose to transfer an amount of ` 25 to the SEZ re-investment reserve account and ` 2650 to the general 
reserve out of the profit for the year.

4. OPERATIONS AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

 Sales, profitability and earnings per ordinary share show under noted posiƟon during the year under review as 
compared to previous year :

ParƟculars For the year ended
31st March, 2016

For the year ended
31st March, 2015

Gross sales 33,880.62 26,496.62
Export sales (C.I.F. value) 10,553.34 11,973.47
OperaƟng profit 3,826.64 1,967.38
Other income 1,271.66 2,166.73
Profit before tax 5,098.30 4,231.56
Profit aŌer tax 3,647.47 3,458.09
Earnings per ordinary share of face value of ` 10 (in `) 80.85 76.65

DIRECTORS' REPORT
(` in Lakhs)
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 During the year under review, the Jute Industry gradually came out from bad phase and was able to operate at 
reasonable capacity largely on account of regular government orders compared to previous year when there was an 
Industry-wide cut in producƟon. 

 In the wake of above scenario, it is a maƩer of great saƟsfacƟon that due to beƩer producƟon and operaƟonal 
efficiency, your Company achieved higher operaƟng profit by more than 94% i.e. ` 1,859.26, being ` 3,826.64 in the 
year under review as compared to ̀  1,967.38 in the previous year. However, impact of said increase in profitability was 
diluted mainly due to lower other income, largely aƩributable to less return on debt funds on account of lower interest 
rates, stagnant  capital market, few maturiƟes of investments  as compared to previous year. Accordingly, profit aŌer 
tax was ` 3,647.47 as compared to ` 3,458.09 during the previous year. 

 Demand of jute goods from overseas markets remained sluggish. There has been steep fall in export of jute yarn 
from India. Moreover, the Company’s export oriented unit at Falta SEZ has been conƟnuously operaƟng at reduced 
capacity for want of adequate orders. Accordingly, CIF value of export sales was lower at ` 10,553.34 as against 
` 11,973.47 during previous year. Nevertheless, we are pursuing with our iniƟaƟves to export other diversified Jute 
products including shopping bags, geo texƟle products, convenƟonal and decoraƟve hessian products and are hopeful 
to establish them in the Ɵme to come.

5. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

 a) Industry structure and developments

  Keeping in view the vital role played by the Jute Industry in the livelihood of farmers and workers, government has 
been taking conƟnuous measures for protecƟng the jute sector. Significant steps taken by the Government include 
extension of the mandatory packaging norms, promoƟon of jute diversified products like launching the Jute CFC 
scheme, promoƟon of jute geo texƟles, MSP operaƟons through JCI etc.

  Merchandise Exports from India Scheme (MEIS) introduced by the Government of India during last year which 
inter-alia provides rewards for export of Jute Goods in the form of duty free scrips of 5% of realised FOB value 
in free foreign currency on all jute products exported out of India conƟnues. Likewise, various schemes being 
implemented by NaƟonal Jute Board for workers’ welfare, scholarship scheme for children of jute mill workers, 
export market development assistance scheme and incenƟve scheme for acquisiƟon of plant and machinery also 
conƟnues.

  On the other hand, the Industry experienced historical rise in prices of raw jute to a level which is unprecedented 
and highest, triggered as a result of shortage of raw jute coupled with ban on export of raw jute imposed by 
Bangladesh. The shortage of raw jute was due to poor crop which resulted on account of unfavourable weather 
and climaƟc condiƟons. 

  In order to handle the crisis, Government has been taking several measures including sƟpulaƟon of stock limits 
for holding raw jute, persuading Bangladesh to liŌ the ban on the export of raw jute. As a long term measure to 
improve availability of raw jute, it is sine qua non for the Government to take appropriate steps for improving area, 
producƟon and producƟvity of raw jute.

 b) OpportuniƟes and threats 
  OpportuniƟes
   Awareness to use eco-friendly, bio-degradable jute goods across the world will keep jute goods always in 

demand;
   Steps taken by the Government of India to assist the jute mills to upgrade old/obsolete machineries and to 

promote jute diversified products will provide opportunity to increase market of jute goods. 
  Threats
   Farmers are allured to take up agricultural acƟviƟes other than jute which result in poor jute crop;
   DiluƟon of Jute Packaging Materials (Compulsory use in packing commodiƟes) Act, 1987 (JPMA) leads to use 

of alternate syntheƟc products for packaging of food grains and sugar; 
   Hard work required in jute industry drive away new generaƟon of workers to opt for alternate opportuniƟes. 

DIRECTORS' REPORT (Contd.)
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(` in Lakhs)
 c) Segment-wise or product-wise performance 
  The Company is engaged in a single business segment i.e. manufacturing and sale of Jute goods. Hence, disclosure 

requirements as required by AccounƟng Standard - 17 are not applicable in respect of business segment. However, 
the geographical segments considered for disclosure are as under : 

Within India Outside India Total
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

Sales (gross)  23,327.28  14,523.15  10,553.34  11,973.47  33,880.62  26,496.62 
Carrying amount of segment assets  45,078.37  39,756.23  –    –    45,078.37  39,756.23 
Capital expenditure  663.42  262.54  –    –    663.42  262.54 

 d) Outlook
  Sowing for the new jute crop for the season 2016-17 is presently under process. It is widely believed that weather 

condiƟons are likely to remain favourable, yielding a beƩer jute crop than last season. However, movement in 
prices of raw jute would be governed by the overall availability of raw jute in India including by way of import from 
Bangladesh which will depend on export policy of the Bangladesh Government. 

  The phenomenal rise in price of raw jute has pushed the jute goods prices upward and made them uncompeƟƟve 
both in domesƟc and internaƟonal markets. Consequently, the demand of jute goods other than government 
orders has been severely affected, leading to loss of domesƟc market as also the loss of export orders.

  Export markets remaining sluggish, tradiƟonal jute sacking products will consƟtute major share in the Company’s 
revenue. The Company endeavours to control other input costs in all possible manners. 

  Looking to the above scenario, the outlook for the current year does not appear to be promising.

 e)  Risks and concerns 

  The key elements of business risks idenƟfied by the Company and its miƟgaƟon measures are as under :

  • CompeƟƟon risk and miƟgaƟon measures  

   There is a strong compeƟƟon from Bangladesh in the internaƟonal market. The cost of labour and power 
in India are significantly higher than Bangladesh. As a result, the price quoted by Bangladesh in the global 
market cannot be matched by Indian jute manufacturers. Moreover, current high prices of jute goods have 
made them uncompeƟƟve in domesƟc markets as against other packaging materials.  In order to survive and 
miƟgate the said risk, the Company is making endeavour to improve operaƟonal efficiency and cut costs in all 
possible areas.

  • Economic environment and market condiƟons risk and miƟgaƟon measures

   Despite jute products being environmental friendly and enjoying statutory protecƟon for mandatory use 
for specified products, alternate packaging materials like HDPE/Polypropylene are used as subsƟtute in the 
packaging market due to the laƩer being cost effecƟve. To miƟgate this risk of using environmental harmful 
packaging material and to face compeƟƟon effecƟvely, the Company is making efforts to increase varied use 
of jute goods by manufacturing diversified jute products including shopping bags and explore avenues to 
penetrate into new markets. Besides, efforts are being made to develop lighter products of jute goods with 
less jute content.  

  • FluctuaƟons in foreign exchange risk and miƟgaƟon measures

   Export sales of the Company are transacted in foreign currencies where fluctuaƟon in currency may impact 
margins of the Company. In order to miƟgate this risk, company enters into forward contract for hedging 
foreign exchange exposure against exports and imports.

  • Business operaƟons risk and miƟgaƟon measures

   Some of the business operaƟons risks and their miƟgaƟon measures are outlined below :

   Revenue concentraƟon : The domesƟc market primarily depends on the Government procurement level for 
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packaging of food grains. India remains a residual supplier in the export market which is dominated largely 
by Bangladesh jute manufacturers. The Company generates revenue from domesƟc as well as export sales. 
Few measures being taken to miƟgate this risk include innovaƟve usage of jute goods, reach out to potenƟal 
buyers both in domesƟc and export front, creaƟng infrastructure for value added and diversified jute products 
including shopping bags. 

   Raw Materials : Availability of raw jute is very crucial for smooth funcƟoning of the mills. The previous season 
witnessed acute shortage of raw jute. Moreover, Bangladesh imposed a restricƟon on export of raw jute to 
India in the later part of the year. The stock built-up was also regulated by the office of Jute Commissioner. 
Under such difficult condiƟons, the Company maintained a policy of regular procurement of raw jute in a 
planned manner linked with producƟon and order posiƟon to miƟgate this risk. In addiƟon to the above, 
weight reducƟon by Government for procurement of B. Twill bags from 665 gms to 580 gms, helped in 
conservaƟon of raw jute.   

   Manpower : Inadequate availability of skilled and unskilled workers at various levels of producƟon is a serious 
concern for smooth operaƟons and good quality of end jute products. The problem is further accentuated 
with high rate of absenteeism amongst workers. To miƟgate such risk, the Company is conƟnuously providing 
required in-house training to freshers and suitably incenƟvising good performers from Ɵme to Ɵme. In order 
to find long term soluƟon to the problem, it is imperaƟve to focus on modernisaƟon and automaƟon of 
manufacturing process to the extent feasible. 

 f)  Internal control systems and their adequacy  

  The Company has in place an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size and the nature of 
operaƟons and the same was operaƟng effecƟvely during the year. The Board have designed the policies and 
procedure to ensure generaƟon of reliable financial informaƟon from the accounƟng records maintained with 
proper authorisaƟon in a secured server. The senior management ensures completeness of the accounƟng 
records with a reasonable assurance of its accuracy. The audit commiƩee saƟsfied itself of the adequacy and 
effecƟveness of the internal financial control system from the findings of statutory auditors and internal auditors. 
SuggesƟons for improvement are considered and the audit commiƩee monitors the implementaƟon of correcƟve 
measures. The Board keep proper vigilance on safeguarding assets of the Company from any unauthorised use 
and adherence to Company policies by employees at all level.

 g)  Discussion on financial performance with respect to operaƟonal performance

  The following are the significant areas of financial performance during the year under review :

  • Revenue from sale of jute goods was at ` 33,880.62 during the year as compared to ` 26,496.62 during 
previous year;

  • OperaƟng profit of the Company has increased by ` 1,859.26 during the year under review;

  • Finance cost was ` 81.63 during the year under review as against ` 86.72 in previous year;

  • Inventories were valued at ` 5,928.92 as at 31st March, 2016 as against ` 4,525.86 as at 31st March, 2015. 
Increase in inventories is partly due to higher stock of finished goods and partly due to higher average rate of 
stocks;

  • The Company has invested ` 663.42 in fixed assets inclusive of capital advances given during the year.

 h) Material developments in Human Resource / Industrial RelaƟons front, including number of people employed  

  Industrial relaƟons remained harmonious during the year under review. Shortage of new skilled entrants in the 
Jute Industry coupled with high rate of worker absenteeism have been areas of concern. The Company is working 
on all possible measures to overcome the issue of availability of skilled workers.

  The Company has approached Sulabh InternaƟonal to explore possibility of construcƟon of toilet blocks for 
workers in the Company’s premises under the NaƟonal Jute Board scheme for workers welfare in Jute sector. 
Further, the eligible children of workers were benefiƩed under the NaƟonal Jute Board Scholarship Scheme. 
HumidificaƟon systems installed by the Company conƟnue to provide a comfortable working atmosphere within 
the factory. Workers are encouraged to take in-house training to enhance their skill and knowledge. Benefits and 
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other faciliƟes provided by the Company under its various staff welfare schemes are upgraded from Ɵme to Ɵme 
in the overall interest of the staffs.

  As on 31st March, 2016, the Company had 4168 employees on its rolls. 

  The Company has a policy on prevenƟon, prohibiƟon and redressal of complaints/grievances on the sexual 
harassment of women at work places which is being monitored by a commiƩee consƟtuted by the Company for 
the said purpose. During the year under review, no complaint of sexual harassment has been received by the 
Company. 

 i) CauƟonary statement 

  Statement made in this secƟon of the report is based on the prevailing posiƟon in the jute industry and market 
condiƟons. Actual results might differ from what we perceive with respect to Company’s outlook and performance.  

6. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 The corporate governance report and a cerƟficate from the statutory auditors M/s Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants 
regarding compliance of the condiƟons of corporate governance as sƟpulated in Schedule V to the SEBI (LisƟng 
ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 is given in Annexure - I, forming part of this report. 

7. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

 An extract of the annual return for the year ended 31st March, 2016 in the prescribed Form MGT-9 is given in 
Annexure - II forming part of this report in compliance with SecƟon 92 of the Companies Act, 2013.

8. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

 ParƟculars of investments made by the Company have been disclosed in Note 11 and Note 14 to the financial 
statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

9. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

 During the year under review, all transacƟons with related parƟes were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s 
length basis. There being no ‘material’ contracts or arrangement or transacƟons at arm’s length basis with related 
parƟes, no disclosure in From AOC-2 is therefore required. Disclosures as required under accounƟng standard-18 
have been made in Note 46 to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016. Since the Company has 
not extended any loan or advance to its associate, holding or firms/companies in which directors are interested, no 
disclosure is required as per Point A(2) to Schedule V to the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015. 

10. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 The informaƟon and details on conservaƟon of energy, technology absorpƟon, foreign exchange earnings and 
outgo, as sƟpulated in SecƟon 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder are given in 
Annexure - III forming part of this Report. 

11. DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

 The Board has developed and implemented a risk management policy idenƟfying therein the elements of risk and 
concern that may threaten the existence of the Company. Audit commiƩee reviews the risk elements and decides the 
appropriate miƟgaƟon procedures. The Board keeps an overall watch on the business risks and opportuniƟes. Detailed 
discussion on risks/concern/threat has been made under the head ‘management discussion and analysis report’. 

12. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)  

 During the year, the Company made direct expenditure on restoraƟon of two school buildings near the factory area 
as part fulfillment of the CSR towards promoƟng educaƟon. Besides, CSR acƟviƟes were carried out through eligible 
registered trusts having established track records in the field of promoƟng educaƟon and health care. CSR Policy of the 
Company is available on Company’s website (www.groupcheviot.net). Annual Report on CSR is given in Annexure - IV 
forming part of this report.

13. ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

 The Company has established a vigil mechanism/whistle blower policy to report any concern or misconduct by affected 
persons. This Policy also allows a direct access to the Chairman of audit commiƩee in excepƟonal cases. The whistle 
blower policy is hosted on the Company’s website (www.groupcheviot.net). 
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14. DIRECTORS 

 During the year under review, there was no change in the composiƟon of the Board of Directors.

 Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria, Chairman and Managing Director and CEO (holding DIN 00060259) was re-appointed for 
a period of five years with effect from 1st August, 2015 by the members at the AGM held on 13th August, 2015.  

 Mrs. MalaƟ Kanoria, non-execuƟve director, (holding DIN 00253241) was re-appointed as a Director at the AGM held 
on 13th August, 2015 whose period of office was liable to determinaƟon by reƟrement of directors by rotaƟon. 

 Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal (Mr. Kejriwal) (holding DIN 00060314) reƟres from the Board by rotaƟon at the forthcoming 
AGM, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 Mr. Kejriwal has been re-appointed as WholeƟme Director of the Company by the Board whose period of office shall 
be liable to determinaƟon by reƟrement of directors by rotaƟon for a further period of 2 years with effect from 1st 
June, 2016 subject to the approval of the members at the forthcoming AGM. 

 Brief details of Mr. Kejriwal seeking re-appointment have been given in the noƟce convening AGM.

 All independent directors of the Company have given declaraƟons that they meet the criteria of independence as 
provided in SecƟon 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 The Board of directors have carried out the annual performance evaluaƟon of its own performance, performance of 
various commiƩees consƟtuted by the Board and the individual directors. The criteria for said evaluaƟon has been 
stated in the corporate governance report annexed hereto. 

15. COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION INCLUDING CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING 
QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES, INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR AND OTHER MATTERS

 Keeping in view the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015, the nominaƟon and remuneraƟon commiƩee (NRC) review the composiƟon and diversity of the 
Board and idenƟfy persons who are qualified to become directors in accordance with the criteria laid down by the 
Board of Directors of the Company. NRC recommend to the Board about the appointment/re-appointment of eligible 
candidates including their terms of appointment and remuneraƟon. The remuneraƟon policy including criteria for 
determining qualificaƟons, posiƟve aƩributes, independence of a director have been disclosed in Annexure - V forming 
part of this Report.

16. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 In terms of SecƟon 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is hereby stated to the best of our knowledge and belief that :

 (a) in the preparaƟon of the annual accounts, the applicable accounƟng standards had been followed along with 
proper explanaƟon relaƟng to material departures;

 (b) the directors had selected such accounƟng policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and 
esƟmates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

 (c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounƟng records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 
prevenƟng and detecƟng fraud and other irregulariƟes;

 (d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

 (e) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operaƟng effecƟvely;

 (f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems were adequate and operaƟng effecƟvely.

17. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

 The Board of directors met 5 (five) Ɵmes during the year under review. More details are available in the corporate 
governance report. 
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18. COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

 The Board has consƟtuted the audit commiƩee with three independent directors. More details on the audit commiƩee 
are given in the corporate governance report. 

19. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

 There was no change in the Key Managerial Personnel during the year under review.

20. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

 The raƟo of the remuneraƟon of each director to the median employee’s remuneraƟon and other details as required 
under SecƟon 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed thereunder have been disclosed in 
Annexure - VI forming part of this Report.

21. PUBLIC DEPOSITS

 The Company has not accepted deposits from Public under SecƟon 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 
framed thereunder.

22. DISCLOSURE

 Following disclosures are made under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 :

 (i) The financial summary or highlights are discussed at the beginning of this report;

 (ii) There is no change in the nature of business;

 (iii) There is no company which has become or ceased to be the Company’s subsidiary, joint venture or associate 
company during the year;

 (iv) No significant and material order was passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals which impact the going 
concern status and its future operaƟons.

23. ADOPTION OF NEW ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

 The exisƟng ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of the Company were adopted in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956. With the enactment of Companies Act, 2013 and its substanƟal SecƟons having come into force, it is now 
expedient to replace the exisƟng ArƟcles of AssociaƟon with the new set of ArƟcles of AssociaƟon. It is accordingly 
proposed that a new set of ArƟcles of AssociaƟon be adopted by the members and a resoluƟon to this effect is 
included at Item No. 5 of the noƟce convening the annual general meeƟng. The Board recommends passing of the said 
resoluƟon by the members. 

24. STATUTORY AUDITORS  

 M/s Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants (ICAI RegistraƟon No. 302023E), was appointed as the statutory auditor of 
the Company at the AGM held on 8th August, 2014 to hold office unƟl the conclusion of the AGM to be held in 2017 
subject to raƟficaƟon by members at every AGM. 

 The Board recommends raƟfying the tenure of M/s Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company from the conclusion of ensuing AGM unƟl the conclusion of the next AGM.

 A cerƟficate from the auditors has been received to the effect that they meet the criteria laid down under SecƟon 141 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and are willing to conƟnue as statutory auditors of the Company. Moreover, the Statutory 
Auditors have also confirmed that they hold a valid cerƟficate issued by the Peer Review Board of the InsƟtute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

25. COST AUDITORS

 The cost accounƟng records maintained by the Company for the current financial year ending on 31st March 2017 are 
required to be audited pursuant to SecƟon 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed thereunder. In this 
regard, the Board of directors on the recommendaƟon of audit commiƩee, had reappointed M/s D. Radhakrishnan 
& Co., Cost Accountants (RegistraƟon No. 000018), to carry out the cost audit at a remuneraƟon of ` 32,500/- plus 
applicable taxes and re-imbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred by them.

 The resoluƟon included at Item No. 9 of the noƟce convening the annual general meeƟng seek members’ raƟficaƟon 
to the remuneraƟon payable to the cost auditor.
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26. SECRETARIAL AUDIT

 Pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, the Company 
has appointed M/s MR & Associates, a firm of pracƟcing company secretaries (CoP 2551) as the secretarial auditor for 
the year ended 31st March, 2016. The secretarial audit report dated 14th May, 2016 is aƩached as Annexure - VII to 
this report.

27. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

 The directors sincerely thank financial insƟtuƟons, banks, government authoriƟes, business associates and all 
stakeholders for their conƟnued co-operaƟon and support to the Company. The directors record with appreciaƟon, 
the dedicated service and valued contribuƟons made by employees at all levels. 

For and on behalf of the Board
Harsh Vardhan Kanoria

Chairman and Managing Director,
Chief ExecuƟve Officer 

Kolkata, 25th May, 2016 DIN : 00060259
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ANNEXURE I TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
[Pursuant to Part C of Schedule V of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟon, 2015 "LisƟng 
RegulaƟons"]

1.  Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance
 The Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance conƟnues in the direcƟon of achieving sustained growth and 

aƩaining saƟsfacƟon of its employees, shareholders and customers. Your Company believes that good governance is a 
conƟnuous process which enables the Company to uphold the ethical and business expectaƟons by maintaining high 
standard of product quality, transparency in operaƟons, improved producƟvity and enhanced customer saƟsfacƟon. 

2.  Board of Directors
 a)  ComposiƟon and category of directors
  The composiƟon of the Board of Directors (the Board) is in conformity with SecƟon 149 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and LisƟng RegulaƟons. As on 31st March 2016, the Board of the Company comprised of 7 (seven) Directors, 
of whom one is an execuƟve director belonging to the promoter group (Chairman and Managing Director), one 
is an execuƟve director (WholeƟme Director), one is a woman non-execuƟve director belonging to the promoter 
group, and four are independent directors. 

  Each independent director has confirmed that the total number of independent directorship held during the 
previous year was not more than seven listed companies. 

 b)  Details of aƩendance of each Director at the Board MeeƟngs and the last Annual General MeeƟng (AGM), 
along-with number of other Directorship(s) and other Board CommiƩee Chairmanship(s)/Membership(s) held 
as on 31st March 2016.

Name of the Directors PosiƟon AƩendance ParƟculars No. of other directorship(s) and other Board 
commiƩee membership(s)/chairmanship(s) held

At Board
MeeƟngs

At Last AGM
held on 13th 

August, 
2015

Other Board 
Directorship(s)

#

Other Board 
CommiƩee

Membership(s)
*

Other Board 
CommiƩee

Chairmanship(s) 
*

Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria Chairman and 
Managing Director, 
Chief ExecuƟve 
Officer 
(Promoter Category)

5 Yes 4 Nil Nil

Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal WholeƟme Director 5 Yes 1 Nil Nil
Mr. Navin Nayar Independent Director 4 Yes 8 2 1
Mr. Parag Keshar BhaƩacharjee Independent Director 5 Yes 10 1 Nil
Mr. Sushil Dhandhania Independent Director 3 Yes 16 Nil Nil
Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan Independent Director 2 No 12 3 2
Mrs. MalaƟ Kanoria Non-ExecuƟve 

Director 
(Promoter Category) 

5 Yes 4 Nil Nil

  # Includes alternate directorship and directorship in Private Limited Companies and Foreign Companies.
  * CommiƩees include only Audit CommiƩee and Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee.

 c)  Number of Board meeƟngs held and dates on which held 
  5 (five) meeƟngs of the Board were held during the year on 19th May, 2015, 13th August, 2015, 6th November, 

2015, 10th February, 2016 and 10th March, 2016. The maximum gap between two meeƟngs was less than one 
hundred and twenty days. During the year, as per the requirement of Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and 
RegulaƟon 25(3) of the LisƟng RegulaƟons, a separate meeƟng of the independent directors was held on 24th 
March, 2016 which was aƩended by all the independent directors.
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 d)  Disclosure of relaƟonships between directors inter-se
  No director is, inter se, related to any other director on the Board, except Mrs. MalaƟ Kanoria, who is related to 

Chairman and Managing Director of the Company. 

 e) Number of shares and converƟble instruments held by non-execuƟve directors
  Mrs. MalaƟ Kanoria, non-execuƟve Director, holds 2,85,150 shares of the Company. None of the independent 

directors holds any share in the Company.

 f)  Web link where details of familiarisaƟon programmes imparted to independent directors is disclosed
  The Company has a familiarisaƟon programme for independent directors and the same is available on the website 

of the Company (www.groupcheviot.net). The present independent directors are well conversant with the 
operaƟons of the Jute Industry, the Company's business model and their responsibiliƟes as independent directors. 
However, the familiarisaƟon programme will be imparted as and when considered necessary by the Board.

 g)  Other provisions
  The Company has proper systems to enable the Board to periodically review compliance reports prepared by 

the Company in respect of laws applicable to the Company, as well as steps taken by the Company to recƟfy any 
instances of non-compliance. The Board has devised plans for orderly succession for appointments to the Board 
of directors and to senior management category. 

3.  Audit commiƩee

 a)  Brief descripƟon of terms of reference 
  The terms of reference of the audit commiƩee are in accordance with the provisions of SecƟon 177 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and also include the roles as specified in Part C of Schedule II to the LisƟng RegulaƟons. The 
terms of reference inter alia include : 

   Overview of the Company’s financial reporƟng process and the disclosure of its financial informaƟon to ensure 
that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

  • Recommend to the Board the appointment, remuneraƟon and terms of appointment of auditors;
  • ExaminaƟon of quarterly and annual financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon before submission 

to the Board;
  • Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effecƟveness of audit process;
  • EvaluaƟon of internal financial controls and risk idenƟficaƟon, assessment and miƟgaƟon process;
  • Discussion with internal auditors on any significant findings and reviewing the reporƟng structure, coverage 

and frequency of internal audit;
  • Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well 

as post audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;
  • Review of the funcƟoning of whistle blower mechanism;
  • ScruƟny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
  • Approval of related party transacƟons.
 b)  ComposiƟon, name of members and chairperson 
  The details of composiƟon of the audit commiƩee with name of members and chairperson are as follows : 

Name of the directors DesignaƟon Category
Mr. Navin Nayar Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Parag Keshar BhaƩacharjee Member Independent Director
Mr. Sushil Dhandhania Member Independent Director

  All the members of the audit commiƩee have rich experience and knowledge in financial and accounƟng areas.
 c)  MeeƟngs and aƩendance during the year
  During the year, 4 (four) meeƟngs of the audit commiƩee were held on 19th May, 2015, 12th August, 2015, 

6th November, 2015 and 10th February, 2016.
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Name of the directors Number of meeƟngs aƩended
Mr. Navin Nayar 3
Mr. Parag Keshar BhaƩacharjee 4
Mr. Sushil Dhandhania 3

  President (Corporate Affairs), Chief Financial Officer, representaƟves of statutory auditor, internal auditor and cost 
auditor were invitees to the meeƟngs of the audit commiƩee. The chairman of the audit commiƩee was present 
at the last AGM of the Company held on 13th August, 2015. Minutes of audit commiƩee are placed before the 
Board for noƟng. The Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the audit commiƩee.  

  The maximum gap between any two meeƟngs was less than one hundred and twenty days.
4.  NominaƟon and remuneraƟon commiƩee
 a)  Brief descripƟon of terms of reference
  The terms of reference of the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee are in accordance with the provisions of 

SecƟon 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and also include the roles as specified in Part D (A) of Schedule II to the 
LisƟng RegulaƟons. 

  The terms of reference inter-alia include :
  • IdenƟfying and selecƟon of persons for appointment as directors and senior management in accordance with 

the criteria laid down and to recommend to the Board their appointment;
  • Formulate the criteria for determining qualificaƟons, posiƟve aƩributes and independence of a Director;
  • Recommend to the Board a policy relaƟng to, the remuneraƟon of the directors, key managerial personnel 

and other senior management personnel;
  • Formulate and review criteria for evaluaƟon of performance of the Board of directors;
  • Devise a policy on diversity of Board of directors.
 b)  ComposiƟon, name of members and chairperson
  The details of composiƟon of nominaƟon and remuneraƟon commiƩee with name of members and chairperson 

are as follows :

Name of the directors DesignaƟon Category
Mr. Sushil Dhandhania Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Navin Nayar Member Independent Director
Mr. Parag Keshar BhaƩacharjee Member Independent Director

 c)  MeeƟngs and aƩendance during the year 
  During the year, 2 (Two) meeƟngs of the nominaƟon and remuneraƟon commiƩee were held on 18th May, 2015 

and 6th November, 2015.

Name of the directors Number of meeƟngs aƩended
Mr. Sushil Dhandhania 2
Mr. Navin Nayar 2
Mr. Parag Keshar BhaƩacharjee 2

  The chairman of the nominaƟon and remuneraƟon commiƩee was present at the last AGM of the Company held 
on 13th August, 2015.

 d)  Performance evaluaƟon criteria for independent directors

  The nominaƟon and remuneraƟon commiƩee has laid down the evaluaƟon criteria for determining the 
performance of the independent directors on the Board broadly covering preparedness for board meeƟngs; 
aƩendance; judgments and decisions taken on business operaƟons; contribuƟon in developing strategies and risk 
management policies; adherence to Company’s code of conduct and corporate governance; effecƟve parƟcipaƟon 
in commiƩee meeƟngs; pro-acƟveness in highlighƟng areas of concern at the meeƟng; sharing of knowledge and 
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business informaƟon; disclosure of interest and list of relaƟves in Ɵmely manner; response from fellow Board 
members and senior management personnel. 

  Based on criteria laid down by the nominaƟon and remuneraƟon commiƩee, the enƟre Board carried out its own 
performance evaluaƟon and that of its commiƩees and the independent directors (excluding the director being 
evaluated), and recorded saƟsfactory performance during the year under review.  

  The independent directors held a separate meeƟng on 24th March, 2016 and carried out inter-alia the performance 
evaluaƟon of the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company, other non-independent directors and the 
Board as a whole. 

5.  RemuneraƟon of directors

 (a)  Details of remuneraƟon of directors

  Details of remuneraƟon of execuƟve directors for the year ended 31st March, 2016:

Name of the directors Salary Commission ContribuƟon to 
provident fund

EsƟmated value of 
other perquisites

Tenure of 
appointment

Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria 22.00 213.00 2.20 29.29 5 years from 1st 
August, 2015

Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal 15.00 15.00 1.50 8.99 2 years from 1st 
June, 2014

  The appointment of the execuƟve directors is governed by the arƟcles of associaƟon of the Company. The principal 
terms and condiƟons including the remuneraƟon governing the appointment/re-appointment of the execuƟve 
directors were recommended by the nominaƟon and remuneraƟon commiƩee and approved by the Board of 
directors and the members of the Company. 

  As per terms of appointment, the Company and the execuƟve directors have the right to terminate the appointment 
by giving three months’ prior noƟce in wriƟng to the other. There is no provision for payment of severance fees 
under the resoluƟons governing the appointment of execuƟve directors. 

  Details of remuneraƟon of non-execuƟve directors including independent directors for the year ended 31st March, 
2016:

Non-ExecuƟve/Independent Directors Siƫng fees Commission
Mrs. MalaƟ Kanoria 0.25 4.00
Mr. Sushil Dhandhania 0.15 4.00
Mr. Navin Nayar 0.20 4.00
Mr. Parag Keshar BhaƩacharjee 0.25 4.00
Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan * 0.10 4.00

  * Paid to the firm in which Director is a partner.  

  The Company has not issued any stock opƟons to its Directors. 

  Apart from payment of remuneraƟon to non-execuƟve directors / independent directors of the Company, as 
disclosed herein above, the Company has paid dividend aggregaƟng to ` 96.95 to Mrs. MalaƟ Kanoria. The 
Company has not entered into any other pecuniary relaƟonship or transacƟons with the non-execuƟve directors. 

 b)  Criteria of making payment to non-execuƟve directors

  The role of the non-execuƟve directors requires devoƟon of sufficient Ɵme to exercise independent judgment 
in the best interest of Company with ability to contribute and to monitor corporate governance pracƟce and 
adherence to the Company’s code of conduct. Appointments and terms of remuneraƟon of non-execuƟve directors 
are considered by the Board of directors of the Company based on the recommendaƟon of the nominaƟon and 
remuneraƟon commiƩee within the limits specified in the special resoluƟon passed by the members.
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  RemuneraƟon to the non-execuƟve directors are kept at levels such that the non-execuƟve directors can be 
retained and moƟvated to run the Company successfully. 

  Non-execuƟve directors including independent directors shall be enƟtled to receive remuneraƟon by way of siƫng 
fees for aƩending meeƟngs of the Board or CommiƩee thereof or any other meeƟng as may be decided by the 
Board within the limits prescribed under SecƟon 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder 
for payment of siƫng fees. Subject to approval of the members of the Company, non-execuƟve directors including 
independent directors shall also be paid commission up to an aggregate amount not exceeding 1% of the net 
profits of the Company for the year. The amount of commission shall be determined by the Board based on 
their aƩendance, Ɵme and effort devoted and any other contribuƟon made by them. In addiƟon, to the siƫng 
fees and commission, the non-execuƟve directors including independent directors shall be enƟtled to be paid 
their reasonable traveling and hotel and other expenses incurred in consequence of their aƩending Board and 
CommiƩee meeƟngs and otherwise incurred in the execuƟon of their duƟes as Directors.  

6.  Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee 

 a)  Name of non-execuƟve director heading the commiƩee 

  Mr. Sushil Dhandhania, an Independent Director of the Company is the Chairman of the stakeholders relaƟonship 
commiƩee. The details of composiƟon of stakeholders relaƟonship commiƩee with name of members and 
chairperson are as follows :

Name of the directors DesignaƟon Category
Mr. Sushil Dhandhania Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Parag Keshar BhaƩacharjee Member Independent Director
Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal Member WholeƟme Director

 b)  Name and designaƟon of Compliance Officer

  Mr. Aditya Banerjee, Company Secretary of the Company is the compliance officer. 

 c)  Number of shareholders’ complaints received so far, number not solved to the saƟsfacƟon of shareholders, 
Number of pending complaints. 

  During the year under review, 57 queries/complaints were received from the shareholders, all of which have been 
redressed to the saƟsfacƟon of shareholders except 1 query received on 25th March, 2016 which has since been 
redressed. The Company had no request pending for share transfer/transmission at the close of financial year. 
Queries/complaints received from the investors are replied generally within 15 days of the receipt of the leƩers/
mails.

7.  Other CommiƩees

 I.  Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩee 

  a)  ComposiƟon, name of members and chairperson

   The details of composiƟon of corporate social responsibility (CSR) commiƩee with name of members and 
chairperson are as follows :

Name of the directors DesignaƟon Category
Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria** Chairman Chairman and Managing Director
Mrs. MalaƟ Kanoria** Chairperson Non-ExecuƟve Director
Mr. Sushil Dhandhania Member Independent Director
Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan Member Independent Director

  b)  MeeƟngs and aƩendance

   Four meeƟngs of the CSR commiƩee were held on 18th May, 2015, 12th August, 2015, 6th November, 2015 
and 10th February, 2016.
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Name of the directors Number of meeƟngs aƩended
Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria** 2
Mrs. MalaƟ Kanoria** 2
Mr. Sushil Dhandhania 4
Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan 2

  ** The CSR CommiƩee was reconsƟtuted by the Board at its meeƟng held on 13th August, 2015 appoinƟng 
Mrs. MalaƟ Kanoria as the Chairperson of the CSR CommiƩee in place of Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria, who 
ceased to be a member of the CSR CommiƩee w.e.f. 13th August, 2015. 

II.  Risk Management commiƩee

  As per the LisƟng RegulaƟons, requirement of consƟtuƟng Risk Management CommiƩee had been made 
applicable to top 100 listed enƟƟes, determined on the basis of market capitalisaƟon, as at the end of the 
immediate previous financial year. Since the Company did not fall within the top 100 listed enƟƟes, it decided 
to disconƟnue the Risk Management CommiƩee which was earlier formed by the Board at its meeƟng held on 
11th November, 2014. The areas of risk idenƟficaƟon, assessment and miƟgaƟon process are monitored by the 
Audit CommiƩee of the Board.

8.  General Body MeeƟngs

 a) LocaƟon and Ɵme where last three Annual General MeeƟngs (AGMs) were held and special resoluƟons passed 
in the previous three AGMs :

Financial Year LocaƟon Date Time Special ResoluƟons Passed

2012-2013 The Sitaram 
Seksaria 

Auditorium, 
BharaƟya 
Bhasha 

Parishad, 
36A, Shakespeare 

Sarani 
(4th Floor), 

Kolkata-700 017

26th July, 2013 11.00 a.m. Nil

2013-2014 8th August, 2014 11.00 a.m.

i.   Amendment to the ArƟcles of 
 AssociaƟon of the Company

ii.  Appointment of Mr. Nawal Kishore  
 Kejriwal (Aged 71 years) as
 WholeƟme Director

iii. Appointment of Mr. Parag Keshar 
 BhaƩacharjee (Aged 75 years) as 
 Independent Director

2014-2015 13th August, 2015 11.00 a.m. Nil

 b)  Postal Ballot

  No special resoluƟon was passed during last year through postal ballot. There is no item on the agenda of ensuing 
AGM which requires passing a special resoluƟon through postal ballot.

9.  Means of CommunicaƟon

 • The financial results of the Company are uploaded at the website of BSE Limited and the website of the Company 
and are simultaneously forwarded for publicaƟon in newspapers within the sƟpulated Ɵme. 

 • Financial results are normally published in Business Standard in its all India ediƟons (in English) and Aajkal (in 
Bengali).

 • The Company has its own funcƟonal website “www.groupcheviot.net” where informaƟon about the Company, 
quarterly and annual audited financial results, annual reports, distribuƟon of shareholding at the end of the each 
quarter, official press releases, informaƟon required to be disclosed under RegulaƟons 30(8) and 46 of the LisƟng 
RegulaƟons, etc. are regularly updated. 

 • The Company has not made any presentaƟon to insƟtuƟonal investors or to the analysts during the year under 
review.

 • Management discussion and analysis report forms part of the directors’ report.
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10. General shareholder informaƟon

i) AGM : Date, Time and Venue    29th July, 2016 at 11.00 a.m. at The Sitaram Seksaria Auditorium, 
BharaƟya Bhasha Parishad, 36A, Shakespeare Sarani, 4th Floor, 
Kolkata - 700 017 

ii) Financial Calendar (TentaƟve) I.
II.
III.
IV.
V.

Financial Year : 
First quarter results 
Half yearly results 
Third quarter results
Audited Financial Statements

:
:
:
:
:

April 2016 to March, 2017
29th July, 2016
On or before 14th November, 2016
On or before 14th February, 2017
On or before 30th May, 2017

iii) Dividend payment date Interim dividend was paid on 21st March, 2016
iv) The name and address of each 

stock exchange(s) at which the 
Company’s securiƟes are listed and 
a confirmaƟon about payment of 
annual lisƟng fee to each of such 
stock exchange(s)

BSE Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers
Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001

LisƟng Fees for the year 2016-2017 has been paid on 22nd April, 2016.

v) Stock Code-Physical 526817 on BSE Limited

Demat ISIN Number for NSDL and CDSL INE974B01016
vi) Market Price data: High, Low during 

each month in last financial year
InformaƟon has been given at the end of clause 10.

vii) Stock performance of the Company 
in comparison to BSE Sensex. 
(April, 2015 to March, 2016)

InformaƟon has been given at the end of clause 10.

viii) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent Maheshwari DatamaƟcs Pvt. Ltd.
6, Mangoe Lane, (2nd Floor), Kolkata - 700 001 
Phone : 033-2243 5029/5809 Fax : 033-2248 4787
E-mail : mdpldc@yahoo.com

ix) Share Transfer System InformaƟon has been given at the end of clause 10.
x) DistribuƟon of Shareholding as on 

 31st March, 2016
InformaƟon has been given at the end of clause 10.

xi) DematerialisaƟon of shares and 
liquidity

As on 31st March, 2016, 96.3297% of the Company’s paid-up share 
capital represenƟng 4345675 shares is held in dematerialised form.

xii) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants 
or any converƟble instruments, 
conversion date and likely impact 
on equity

Not issued

xiii) Commodity price risk or foreign 
exchange risk and hedging acƟviƟes

The Company has proper system to monitor the foreign exchange 
exposures on regular basis and appropriate steps are taken by the 
management to limit the risks of adverse exchange rate movement by 
entering into forward contract for hedging foreign exchange exposure 
against exports and imports. The details of hedged and unhedged 
foreign currency exposure are reported at Note 37 to the financial 
statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

xiv) Plant LocaƟons The Company’s plants are located at following places:
i)  19, Mehta Road, Badekalinagar, Budge Budge, 

 24 Parganas (South) - 700 137 (West Bengal);
ii)  Sector II, Falta Special Economic Zone, Falta, 

 24 Parganas (South) - 743 504 (West Bengal).
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xv) Address for Correspondence Cheviot Company Limited
CIN : L65993WB1897PLC001409 
24, Park Street, Magma House, (9th Floor), Kolkata - 700 016
Phone : 033 - 3291 9624/25/28
Fax :  033 - 2249 7269 
Email :  cheviot@chevjute.com
E-voƟng services e-mail ID : evoƟng@chevjute.com
Investor services e-mail ID : investorservices@chevjute.com 
Website :  www.groupcheviot.net

InformaƟon in respect of clause 10 (vi)
Market Price data: High, Low during 2015-2016 is given in the table below :

Month BSE Limited
High (`) Low (`)

April, 2015 413.90 337.60
May, 2015 565.00 358.10
June, 2015 594.90 480.10
July, 2015 665.00 538.00
August, 2015 745.00 501.50
September, 2015 565.00 470.25
October, 2015 634.75 530.00
November, 2015 1046.00 615.00
December, 2015 1070.00 900.50
January, 2016 1038.00 740.00
February, 2016 840.00 540.00
March, 2016 754.00 555.00

InformaƟon in respect of clause 10 (vii)

Stock performance of the Company in comparison to BSE Sensex (April, 2015 to March, 2016)

Month Company’ share price at BSE Limited in (`) BSE Sensex 
High Low High Low

April, 2015 413.90 337.60 29,094.61 26,897.54
May, 2015 565.00 358.10 28,071.16 26,423.99
June, 2015 594.90 480.10 27,968.75 26,307.07
July, 2015 665.00 538.00 28,578.33 27,416.39
August, 2015 745.00 501.50 28,417.59 25,298.42
September, 2015 565.00 470.25 26,471.82 24,833.54
October, 2015 634.75 530.00 27,618.14 26,168.71
November, 2015 1,046.00 615.00 26,824.30 25,451.42
December, 2015 1,070.00 900.50 26,256.42 24,867.73
January, 2016 1,038.00 740.00 26,197.27 23,839.76
February, 2016 840.00 540.00 25,002.32 22,494.61
March, 2016 754.00 555.00 25,479.62 23,133.18
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InformaƟon in respect of clause 10 (ix)
Share Transfer System
Share transfers in physical and demat form are processed by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s Maheshwari 
DatamaƟcs Pvt. Ltd. on regular basis. The transfer/transmission of shares are approved in accordance with the powers 
delegated by the Board of Directors to the Chairman and Managing Director, WholeƟme Director, President (Corporate 
Affairs) and Company Secretary. 

The shares lodged for transfers/dematerialisaƟon are processed within 15 days from the date of their lodgement, if transfer 
instruments are found valid and complete in all respects. 

As sƟpulated by SEBI, Messers MR & Associates, a firm of PracƟcing Chartered Secretaries carries out the secretarial audit 
to reconcile the total admiƩed capital in dematerialised form (held with NSDL and CDSL) and total number of shares in 
physical form and to confirm that the total listed and paid-up capital are in agreement with the aggregate number of 
shares. This audit is carried out in every quarter and the report is submiƩed to the BSE Limited. 

InformaƟon in respect of clause 10 (x)

a)  DistribuƟon of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2016 :

Number of Ordinary 
shares held 

Number of Shares Percentage of 
Shareholding

Number of 
Shareholders/folios

Percentage of 
Shareholders

Up to 500           5,90,245    13.0838              7,483            95.4464 
501 to 1000           1,60,016       3.5471    213              2.7169
1001 to 2000           1,15,125       2.5520      85              1.0842 
2001 to 3000             69,137       1.5325      27              0.3444 
3001 to 4000             36,172       0.8018      10              0.1276 
4001 to 5000             26,296       0.5829         6              0.0765 
5001 to 10000             59,462       1.3181        8              0.1020 
10001 and above       34,54,797    76.5818         8              0.1020 
Total 45,11,250 100.0000 7,840 100.0000
Physical Mode 1,65,575 3.6703 1,464 18.6735
Demat Mode 43,45,675 96.3297 6,376 81.3265

b)  Shareholding PaƩern as on 31st March, 2016 :

Category
code

Category of shareholders Number of 
shareholders

Total number of 
shares

As a percentage 
of total shares

(A) Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group*
1. Indian 7 33,83,312 74.9972
2. Foreign – – –
Total Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group 7 33,83,312 74.9972

(B) Public Shareholding
1. InsƟtuƟons 20 7,700 0.1707
2. Non–insƟtuƟons 7,813 11,20,238 24.8321
Total Public Shareholding 7,833 11,27,938 25.0028

(C) Shares held by Custodians and against which Depository 
Receipts have been issued
1. Promoter and Promoter Group – – –
2. Public – – –
Total Shares held by Custodians – – –
TOTAL (A)+(B)+(C) 7,840 45,11,250 100.0000

* As per disclosure under RegulaƟon 30(2) of the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SubstanƟal AcquisiƟon of Shares 
and Takeovers) RegulaƟons, 2011, furnished by the promoters. 
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11.  CEO and CFO cerƟficaƟon

 Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria, Chairman and Managing Director, Chief ExecuƟve Officer and Mr. Madhup Kumar Patni, 
Chief Financial Officer of the Company provided annual cerƟficaƟon on the financial statements and the cash flow 
statement to the Board in terms of RegulaƟon 17 of the LisƟng RegulaƟons.

12.  DeclaraƟon on compliance with Company’s Code of Conduct

 The Board of directors have formulated a code of conduct applicable to all its members and senior management of 
the Company incorporaƟng duƟes of independent directors which has been posted on the website of the Company 
(www.groupcheviot.net). A declaraƟon signed by the Chief ExecuƟve Officer of the Company affirming compliance 
with the Company’s code of conduct by the members of Board of Directors and senior management of the Company 
is appended to this report.

13.  Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account / unclaimed suspense account

 As on 31st March, 2016, there are no outstanding shares of the Company lying in the demat suspense / unclaimed 
suspense account. 

14.  Other Disclosures

 • There are no materially significant related party transacƟons between the Company and its promoters, directors 
or their relaƟves etc. that may have potenƟal conflict with the interests of Company at large. All transacƟons 
were entered with related party in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length price with prior omnibus 
approval of the audit commiƩee in line with the policy on related party transacƟons of the Company. Disclosures 
as required under AS-18 have been made in Note 46 to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 
2016. Policy on related party transacƟons and other policies and code of conduct adopted by the Board are 
displayed on the website of the Company (www.groupcheviot.net). 

 • During the last three years, no penalty or stricture have been imposed on the Company by the BSE Limited or SEBI 
or any other statutory authority for non-compliance of any maƩer related to the capital markets.

 • Whistle blower policy / vigil mechanism established by the Company offers appropriate protecƟon to the whistle 
blowers from vicƟmisaƟon, harassment or disciplinary proceedings. The whistle blower(s) may also lodge their 
complaints / concern with the Chairman of the audit commiƩee. No person has been denied access to the audit 
commiƩee.

 • Disclosure of compliance with mandatory and non-mandatory corporate governance requirements:

  The Company has made compliance with corporate governance requirements as specified in Clause 49 of the 
LisƟng Agreement / RegulaƟons 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of sub-regulaƟon (2) of RegulaƟon 46 read with 
Schedule V to LisƟng RegulaƟons.

  a.  Mandatory requirements : The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements under the LisƟng 
Agreement / LisƟng RegulaƟons. 

  b.  Non-Mandatory requirements : The Chairman of the Company being an execuƟve director, maintaining a 
chairman’s office for non-execuƟve Chairman is not applicable. The Company did not send half yearly 
declaraƟon of financial performance to each household of shareholders since the financial results were made 
available in the website for public informaƟon. The Company has received unqualified financial statements 
during the year ended 31st March, 2016 from the auditors. The Company has not appointed separate persons 
to the post of Chairman and Managing Director / CEO. The internal auditors of the Company directly reports 
to the audit commiƩee.

 • The Company does not have any subsidiary.

For and on behalf of the Board 
Harsh Vardhan Kanoria 

Chairman and Managing Director,
 Chief ExecuƟve Officer
Kolkata, 25th May, 2016 DIN : 00060259
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DeclaraƟon on compliance with Company’s Code of Conduct as required under SEBI 
(LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015

I hereby declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, all the members of Board of Directors and senior 
management personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Company’s Code of Conduct for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2016. 

Harsh Vardhan Kanoria
            Chairman and Managing Director,
               Chief ExecuƟve Officer
Kolkata, 25th May, 2016 DIN : 00060259

Auditors’ CerƟficate on Compliance with the condiƟons of Corporate Governance

To the Members of Cheviot Company Limited
We have examined the compliance of condiƟons of corporate governance by Cheviot Company Limited, (‘the 
Company’) for the year ended 31st March, 2016, as sƟpulated in Clause 49 of the lisƟng agreement of the Company 
with the BSE Limited, for the period from 1st April, 2015 to 30th November, 2015, and as per the relevant provisions 
of SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 
(‘LisƟng RegulaƟons’) for the period from 1st December, 2015 to 31st March, 2016.
The compliance of condiƟons of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examinaƟon 
was limited to procedures and implementaƟon thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of 
the condiƟons of the corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 
statements of the Company.
In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟon given to us, we cerƟfy that the 
Company has complied with the condiƟons of corporate governance as sƟpulated in the above menƟoned LisƟng 
Agreement/LisƟng RegulaƟons, as applicable.
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effecƟveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
 For Jain & Co.
 Chartered Accountants
 RegistraƟon No. 302023E
P-21/22, Radhabazar Street, CA P. K. JAIN
Kolkata - 700 001 Partner 
Dated the 25th day of May, 2016 Membership No. 52018
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ANNEXURE II TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FORM NO. MGT - 9

Extract of annual return as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016
[Pursuant to SecƟon 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of The Companies

(Management and AdministraƟon) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS : 

i) CIN L65993WB1897PLC001409
ii) RegistraƟon Date 27th December, 1897
iii) Name of the Company Cheviot Company Limited
iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public Limited Company
v) Address of the Registered office and 

contact details
24, Park Street
Magma House, 9th Floor
Kolkata - 700016
Phone : 033 - 3291 9624/25/28
Fax Number : 033 - 2249 7269 / 2217 2488
Email ID: cheviot@chevjute.com

vi) Whether listed company or not Yes
vii) Name, Address and Contact details of 

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any
Maheshwari DatamaƟcs Private Limited
6, Mangoe Lane, (2nd Floor), Kolkata - 700 001
Phone : 033-2243 5029 / 5809
Fax : 033-2248 4787
E-mail ID : mdpldc@yahoo.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY :  
 All the business acƟviƟes contribuƟng 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated :

Sl. 
No.

Name and DescripƟon  of 
main products / services

NIC Code of the Product/ service %  to total turnover of the Company

1 Jute Products 131, 139 100%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES :

Sl. 
No

Name and Address of the 
Company

CIN/GLN HOLDING/ 
SUBSIDIARY/ 
ASSOCIATE

% of shares 
held

Applicable 
SecƟon

1 Harsh Investments Private Limited
24, Park Street, Magma House, 
9th Floor, Kolkata - 700 016

U28993WB1971PTC028158 HOLDING 57.0592 2(46)
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

 i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year
(As on 1st April, 2015)

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
(As on 31st March, 2016)

% Change 
during the 

year     Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

A. Promoters
1) Indian

a) Individuals/HUF  7,99,181  -    7,99,181  17.7153  7,99,181  -    7,99,181  17.7153  -   

b) Central Government/State 
Government(s)

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

c) Bodies Corporate  25,84,131  -    25,84,131  57.2819  25,84,131  -    25,84,131  57.2819  -   

d) Banks/FI  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

e) Any other  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Sub-Total (A)(1)  33,83,312  -    33,83,312  74.9972  33,83,312  -    33,83,312  74.9972  -   

2) Foreign
a) NRIs- Individuals  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
b) Other- Individuals  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
c) Bodies Corporate  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
d) Banks/FI  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
e) Any other  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Sub-Total (A)(2)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total shareholding of Promoters 
(A) = (A) (1) + (A) (2)

 33,83,312  -    33,83,312  74.9972  33,83,312  -    33,83,312  74.9972  -   

B. Public Shareholding
1) InsƟtuƟons

a) Mutual Funds  100  100  200  0.0044  100  100  200  0.0044  -   
b) Banks/FI  126  7,374  7,500  0.1663  126  7,374  7,500  0.1663  -   
c) Central Govt.  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
d) State Govt.(s)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
e) Venture Capital Funds  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
f) Insurance Companies  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
g) FIIs  13,168  -    13,168  0.2919  -    -    -    -    (100.0000)

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
i) Others (specify)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Sub-Total (B)(1)  13,394  7,474  20,868  0.4626  226  7,474  7,700  0.1707  (63.1014)
2) Non-InsƟtuƟons

a) Bodies Corporate
i) Indian  1,39,440  9,121  1,48,561  3.2931  57,513  8,440  65,953  1.4620  (55.6054)
ii) Overseas  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
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Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year
(As on 1st April, 2015)

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
(As on 31st March, 2016)

% Change 
during the 

year     Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders holding 

nominal share capital upto ` 1 lakh
 7,38,517  1,33,403  8,71,920  19.3277  7,78,176  1,29,364  9,07,540  20.1173  4.0852 

ii) Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital in excess of 
` 1 lakh

 33,817  -    33,817  0.7496  70,860  -    70,860  1.5707  109.5396 

c) Others (specify)
i) Non Resident Individual  25,410  18,578  43,988  0.9751  20,272  18,578  38,850  0.8612  (11.6805)
ii) Foreign NaƟonal  -    1,719  1,719  0.0381  -    1,719  1,719  0.0381  -   
iii) Custodian of Enemy Property  -    5,537  5,537  0.1227  5,537  -    5,537  0.1227  -   
iv) Clearing Member  1,130  -    1,130  0.0251  29,361  -    29,361  0.6508  2,498.3186 
v) Trusts  398  -    398  0.0088  418  -    418  0.0093  5.0251 
Sub-Total (B) (2)  9,38,712  1,68,358  11,07,070  24.5402  9,62,137  1,58,101  11,20,238  24.8321  1.1894 
Total Public Shareholding
(B) = (B) (1) + (B) (2)

 9,52,106  1,75,832  11,27,938  25.0028  9,62,363  1,65,575  11,27,938  25.0028  -   

C) Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & ADRs  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Grand Total (A+B+C)  43,35,418  1,75,832  45,11,250  100.0000  43,45,675  1,65,575  45,11,250  100.0000  -   

ii)  Shareholding of Promoters

Sl. 
No. Shareholder's Name

Shareholding at the beginning of the year
(As on 1st April, 2015)

Shareholding at the end of the year
(As on 31st March, 2016)

% Change in 
shareholding 

during the 
year    

No. of 
Shares

% of Total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Total 
Shares 

pledged/ 
encumbered 

to total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of Total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Total 
Shares 

pledged/ 
encumbered 

to total shares
1 Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria 3,43,840 7.6218  -   3,43,840 7.6218  -    -   
2 Mrs. MalaƟ Kanoria 2,85,150 6.3209  -   2,85,150 6.3209  -    -   
3 Mr. Utkarsh Kanoria 1,70,191 3.7726  -   1,70,191 3.7726  -    -   
4 Harsh Investments Private Limited 25,74,081 57.0592  -   25,74,081 57.0592  -    -   
5 Abhyadoot Finance and Investments Private Limited 9,000 0.1995  -   9,000 0.1995  -    -   
6 Cheviot InternaƟonal Limited 150 0.0033  -   150 0.0033  -    -   
7 Cheviot Agro Industries Private Limited 900 0.0199  -   900 0.0199  -    -   

Total 33,83,312 74.9972  -   33,83,312 74.9972  -    -
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iii)  Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl No. Shareholding at the beginning of the year
(As on 1st April, 2015)

CumulaƟve Shareholding during the year
(1st April, 2015 to 31st March, 2016)

No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares of the Company

No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares of the Company

At the beginning of the year

There is no change in Promoter's Shareholding 
between 1st April, 2015 and 31st March, 2016

Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters  Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc.)
At the end of the year

iv) Shareholding PaƩern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sl. 
No. For each of the Top Ten Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year (As on 1st April, 2015)

CumulaƟve Shareholding during 
the year (As on 31st March, 2016)

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

1. Vijay Kishanlal Kedia
At the beginning of the year  -    -    -    -   
Date wise increase/decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for increase/ 
decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc.)

20-11-2015 Market Purchase  5,734  0.1271  5,734  0.1271 
27-11-2015 Market Purchase  39,266  0.8704  45,000  0.9975 
11-12-2015 Market Purchase  3,060  0.0678  48,060  1.0653 
18-12-2015 Market Purchase  1,940  0.0430  50,000  1.1083 

At the end of the year  50,000  1.1083 
2. Arcadia Share and Stock Brokers Private Limited

At the beginning of the year  20 0.0004  20  0.0004 
Date wise increase/decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for increase/ 
decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc.)

24-04-2015 Market Sale  10 0.0002  10  0.0002 
01-05-2015 Market Purchase  10 0.0002  20  0.0004 
08-05-2015 Market Sale  20 0.0004  -    -   
29-05-2015 Market Purchase  10,000 0.2217  10,000  0.2217 
05-06-2015 Market Purchase  200 0.0044  10,200  0.2261 
12-06-2015 Market Sale  200 0.0044  10,000  0.2217 
19-06-2015 Market Purchase  47 0.0010  10,047  0.2227 
26-06-2015 Market Sale  47 0.0010  10,000  0.2217 
30-06-2015 Market Purchase  47 0.0010  10,047  0.2227 
03-07-2015 Market Sale  47 0.0010  10,000  0.2217 
07-08-2015 Market Purchase  50 0.0011  10,050  0.2228 
21-08-2015 Market Purchase  50 0.0011  10,100  0.2239 
30-09-2015 Market Sale  50 0.0011  10,050  0.2228 
06-11-2015 Market Purchase  25 0.0006  10,075  0.2233 
20-11-2015 Market Purchase  432 0.0096  10,507  0.2329 
27-11-2015 Market Sale  50 0.0011  10,457  0.2318 
04-12-2015 Market Purchase  5 0.0001  10,462  0.2319 
11-12-2015 Market Purchase  50 0.0011  10,512  0.2330 
18-12-2015 Market Purchase  75 0.0017  10,587  0.2347 
25-12-2015 Market Purchase  75 0.0017  10,662  0.2363 
08-01-2016 Market Purchase  25 0.0006  10,687  0.2369 
22-01-2016 Market Purchase  37 0.0008  10,724  0.2377 

ANNEXURE II TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)



CHEVIOT COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2015 - 16

34

Sl. 
No. For each of the Top Ten Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year (As on 1st April, 2015)

CumulaƟve Shareholding during 
the year (As on 31st March, 2016)

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

29-01-2016 Market Purchase  25 0.0006  10,749  0.2383 
05-02-2016 Market Sale  92 0.0020  10,657  0.2362 
12-02-2016 Market Purchase  203 0.0045  10,860  0.2407 
19-02-2016 Market Sale  172 0.0038  10,688  0.2369 
26-02-2016 Market Purchase  144 0.0032  10,832  0.2401 
04-03-2016 Market Sale  244 0.0054  10,588  0.2347 
11-03-2016 Market Purchase  100 0.0022  10,688  0.2369 
25-03-2016 Market Sale  1 0.0000  10,687  0.2369 

At the end of the year  10,687  0.2369 
3. Rajiv Aggarwal

At the beginning of the year  -    -    -    -   
Date wise increase/decrease in  Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.) 

31-12-2015 Market Purchase  7,000 0.1552  7,000  0.1552 
08-01-2016 Market Purchase  3,279 0.0727  10,279  0.2279 
22-01-2016 Market Purchase  329 0.0073  10,608  0.2351 

At the end of the year  10,608  0.2351 

4. Dr. Ramesh Chimanlal Shah
At the beginning of the year  -    -    -    -   
Date wise increase/decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for increase/ 
decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc.)

12-06-2015 Market Purchase  3,600 0.0798  3,600  0.0798 
26-06-2015 Market Purchase  3,400 0.0754  7,000  0.1552 
16-10-2015 Market Sale  1,000 0.0222  6,000  0.1330 
23-10-2015 Market Sale  6,000 0.1330  -    -   
06-11-2015 Market Purchase  9,500 0.2106  9,500  0.2106 
13-11-2015 Market Purchase  500 0.0111  10,000  0.2217 
27-11-2015 Market Purchase  2,781 0.0616  12,781  0.2833 
08-01-2016 Market Sale  2,281 0.0506  10,500  0.2328 
15-01-2016 Market Sale  248 0.0055  10,252  0.2273 

At the end of the year  10,252  0.2273 
5. Wallfort Financial Services Limited

At the beginning of the year  -    -    -    -   

Date wise increase/decrease in  Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.)

18-12-2015 Market Purchase  10 0.0002  10  0.0002 
25-12-2015 Market Sale  10 0.0002  -    -   
18-03-2016 Market Purchase  10,000 0.2217  10,000  0.2217 

At the end of the year  10,000  0.2217 
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Sl. 
No. For each of the Top Ten Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year (As on 1st April, 2015)

CumulaƟve Shareholding during 
the year (As on 31st March, 2016)

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

6. Nilay Nanubhai Doshi
At the beginning of the year  -    -    -    -   
Date wise increase/decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.) 

22-05-2015 Market Purchase 80 0.0018 80 0.0018
05-06-2015 Market Purchase 4,920 0.1091  5,000  0.1108 
30-09-2015 Market Sale  200 0.0044  4,800  0.1064 
16-10-2015 Market Purchase  200 0.0044  5,000  0.1108 
27-11-2015 Market Sale  400 0.0089  4,600  0.1020 
04-12-2015 Market Purchase  9 0.0002  4,609  0.1022 
18-12-2015 Market Purchase  291 0.0065  4,900  0.1086 
25-12-2015 Market Purchase  100 0.0022  5,000  0.1108 
19-02-2016 Market Purchase  2,000 0.0443  7,000  0.1552 
26-02-2016 Market Sale  303 0.0067  6,697  0.1485 
04-03-2016 Market Purchase  1,525 0.0338  8,222  0.1823 
18-03-2016 Market Sale  222 0.0049  8,000  0.1773 
25-03-2016 Market Purchase  350 0.0078  8,350  0.1851 

At the end of the year  8,350  0.1851 
7 Sanjay Natvarlal Shah

At the beginning of the year 8,614 0.1909 8,614 0.1909
Date wise increase/decrease in  Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.)

21-08-2015 Market Purchase 750 0.0166 9,364 0.2076
09-10-2015 Market Purchase  500 0.0111 9,864 0.2187
16-10-2015 Market Sale 500 0.0111 9,364 0.2076
11-12-2015 Market Sale 148 0.0033 9,216 0.2043

At the end of the year 9,216 0.2043
8 Mohan Lall Golechha

At the beginning of the year  7,698 0.1706  7,698  0.1706 
Date wise increase/decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ 
bonus/sweat equity etc.)

03-04-2015 Market Sale  276 0.0061  7,422  0.1645 
10-04-2015 Market Sale  532 0.0118  6,890  0.1527 
17-04-2015 Market Purchase  33 0.0007  6,923  0.1535 
24-04-2015 Market Purchase  3,478 0.0771  10,401  0.2306 
01-05-2015 Market Sale  1,900 0.0421  8,501  0.1884 
08-05-2015 Market Purchase  2,527 0.0560  11,028  0.2445 
15-05-2015 Market Sale  169 0.0037  10,859  0.2407 
22-05-2015 Market Sale  4,322 0.0958  6,537  0.1449 
29-05-2015 Market Purchase  30 0.0007  6,567  0.1456 
12-06-2015 Market Purchase  20 0.0004  6,587  0.1460 
19-06-2015 Market Purchase  2 0.0000  6,589  0.1461 
26-06-2015 Market Sale  172 0.0038  6,417  0.1422 
03-07-2015 Market Purchase  606 0.0134  7,023  0.1557 
10-07-2015 Market Purchase  50 0.0011  7,073  0.1568 
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Sl. 
No. For each of the Top Ten Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year (As on 1st April, 2015)

CumulaƟve Shareholding during 
the year (As on 31st March, 2016)

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

17-07-2015 Market Purchase  219 0.0049  7,292  0.1616 
24-07-2015 Market Purchase  501 0.0111  7,793  0.1727 
31-07-2015 Market Purchase  8 0.0002  7,801  0.1729 
21-08-2015 Market Sale  568 0.0126  7,233  0.1603 
28-08-2015 Market Purchase  1,779 0.0394  9,012  0.1998 
04-09-2015 Market Purchase  552 0.0122  9,564  0.2120 
11-09-2015 Market Purchase  886 0.0196  10,450  0.2316 
30-09-2015 Market Purchase  26 0.0006  10,476  0.2322 
09-10-2015 Market Sale  165 0.0037  10,311  0.2286 
16-10-2015 Market Sale  7 0.0002  10,304  0.2284 
23-10-2015 Market Sale  169 0.0037  10,135  0.2247 
30-10-2015 Market Purchase  24 0.0005  10,159  0.2252 
06-11-2015 Market Sale  997 0.0221  9,162  0.2031 
20-11-2015 Market Sale  20 0.0004  9,142  0.2026 
04-12-2015 Market Purchase  82 0.0018  9,224  0.2045 
11-12-2015 Market Sale  1,853 0.0411  7,371  0.1634 
18-12-2015 Market Purchase  779 0.0173  8,150  0.1807 
25-12-2015 Market Sale  112 0.0025  8,038  0.1782 
31-12-2015 Market Sale  24 0.0005  8,014  0.1776 
08-01-2016 Market Purchase  261 0.0058  8,275  0.1834 
15-01-2016 Market Purchase  298 0.0066  8,573  0.1900 
22-01-2016 Market Sale  126 0.0028  8,447  0.1872 
29-01-2016 Market Sale  492 0.0109  7,955  0.1763 
05-02-2016 Market Sale  96 0.0021  7,859  0.1742 
12-02-2016 Market Purchase  43 0.0010  7,902  0.1752 
19-02-2016 Market Sale  207 0.0046  7,695  0.1706 
26-02-2016 Market Sale  250 0.0055  7,445  0.1650 
04-03-2016 Market Sale  7 0.0002  7,438  0.1649 
11-03-2016 Market Purchase  49 0.0011  7,487  0.1660 
18-03-2016 Market Sale  202 0.0045  7,285  0.1615 
25-03-2016 Market Purchase  114 0.0025  7,399  0.1640 
31-03-2016 Market Purchase  144 0.0032  7,543  0.1672 

At the end of the year  7,543  0.1672 
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Sl. 
No. For each of the Top Ten Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year (As on 1st April, 2015)

CumulaƟve Shareholding during 
the year (As on 31st March, 2016)

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

9 Bhuvnesh Kumar Bansal
At the beginning of the year  -    -    -    -   
Date wise increase/decrease in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for increase/ 
decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ bonus/sweat 
equity etc.) 

09-10-2015 Market Purchase 1,000 0.0222 1,000 0.0222

23-10-2015 Market Sale 1,000 0.0222 - -

18-03-2016 Market Purchase  7,190 0.1594  7,190  0.1594 

At the end of the year  7,190  0.1594 

10 Manish Poddar HUF
At the beginning of the year  6,000 0.133  6,000  0.1330 
Date wise increase/decrease in Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/ bonus/sweat equity etc.) NIL

At the end of the year  6,000  0.1330 

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel :

Sl 
No. For each of the Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year (As on 1st April, 2015)

CumulaƟve Shareholding during the 
year (As on 31st March, 2016)

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

No. of Shares % of Total Shares 
of the Company

1 Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria, Chairman and Managing Director
At the beginning of the year  3,43,840 7.6218  3,43,840 7.6218
Date wise increase/decrease in shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

 -    -    -    -   

At the end of the year  3,43,840 7.6218  3,43,840 7.6218
2 Mrs. MalaƟ Kanoria, Non-ExecuƟve Director

At the beginning of the year  2,85,150 6.3209  2,85,150 6.3209
Date wise increase/decrease in shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

 -    -    -    -   

At the end of the year  2,85,150 6.3209  2,85,150 6.3209
3 Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal, WholeƟme Director

At the beginning of the year  300 0.0067  300 0.0067
Date wise increase/decrease in shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

 -    -    -    -   

At the end of the year  300 0.0067  300 0.0067
4 Mr. Madhup Kumar Patni, Chief Financial Officer

At the beginning of the year  10 0.0002  10 0.0002
Date wise increase/decrease in shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

 -    -    -    -   

At the end of the year  10 0.0002  10 0.0002
5 Mr. Aditya Banerjee, Company Secretary 

At the beginning of the year  10 0.0002  10 0.0002
Date wise increase/decrease in shareholding during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

 -    -    -    -   

At the end of the year  10 0.0002  10 0.0002
Note : Other Directors on the Board are not holding any share of the Company.
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V INDEBTEDNESS
  Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment : 

Secured Loans  
excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial 
year (1st April, 2015)
i) Principal Amount  1,422.55 - -  1,422.55 
ii) Interest due but not paid  -   - -  -   
iii) Interest accrued but not due  0.20 - -  0.20 
Total (i+ii+iii)  1,422.75 - -  1,422.75 
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

AddiƟon  -   - -  -   
ReducƟon  163.51 - -  163.51 

Net Change  (163.51) - -  (163.51)
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year 
(31st March, 2016)
i) Principal Amount  1,259.24 - -  1,259.24 
ii) Interest due but not paid  -   - -  -   
iii) Interest accrued but not due  -   - -  -   
Total (i+ii+iii)  1,259.24 - -  1,259.24 

VI RemuneraƟon of directors and key managerial personnel
 A RemuneraƟon to managing director, wholeƟme director and/or Manager : 

Sl.
No.

ParƟculars of RemuneraƟon Name of MD/WTD/Manager
Mr. Harsh Vardhan 

Kanoria, Chairman and 
Managing Director, CEO

Mr. Nawal 
Kishore Kejriwal, 

WholeƟme Director

Total 
Amount

1. Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in SecƟon 17(1) of 
the Income Tax Act, 1961

27.63 21.71 49.34

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
of the Income Tax Act, 1961

12.71 1.72 14.43

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 
secƟon 17(3) of the Income Tax 
Act, 1961

 -    -    -   

2. Stock OpƟon  -    -    -   
3. Sweat Equity  -    -    -   
4. Commission

- as % of Profit 213.00 15.00 228.00
5. Others, please specify

(ReƟral Benefits) 13.15 2.06 15.21
Total (A) 266.49 40.49 306.98
Ceiling as per the Act ` 533.39 (being 10% of the net profits of the Company calculated as 

per SecƟon 198 of the Companies Act, 2013)

(` In Lakhs)
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B. RemuneraƟon to other directors :

Sl. 
No.

ParƟculars of 
RemuneraƟon

Name of Directors Total 
Amount

Mr. Parag 
Keshar 

BhaƩacharjee

Mr. Padam 
Kumar Khaitan

Mr. Sushil 
Dhandhania

Mr. Navin 
Nayar

Mrs. MalaƟ 
Kanoria

1. Independent Directors
Fee for aƩending board/ 
commiƩee meeƟngs

 0.25  0.10  0.15  0.20  -    0.70 

Commission  4.00  4.00  4.00  4.00  -    16.00 
 Others, please specify  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total (1)  4.25  4.10  4.15  4.20  -    16.70 

2. Other non-execuƟve 
Directors
Fee for aƩending board/ 
commiƩee meeƟngs

 -    -    -    -    0.25  0.25 

Commission  -    -    -    -    4.00  4.00 
 Others, please specify  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Total (2)  -    -    -    -    4.25  4.25 
Total (B) = (1 + 2)  4.25  4.10  4.15  4.20  4.25  20.95 
Total Managerial 
RemuneraƟon (A + B)

 327.93 

Overall Ceiling as per 
the Act

` 586.72 (being 11% of the net profits of the Company calculated as per 
SecƟon 198 of the Companies Act, 2013)

C. RemuneraƟon to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

Sl.
No. ParƟculars of RemuneraƟon

Key managerial personnel Total 
Amount CFO Company Secretary

1. Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in SecƟon 17(1) of 
the Income Tax Act, 1961

 19.45  11.90  31.35 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
of the Income Tax Act, 1961

 0.96  0.56  1.52 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 
SecƟon 17(3) of the Income 
Tax Act, 1961

 -    -    -   

2. Stock OpƟon  -    -    -   
3. Sweat Equity  -    -    -   
4. Commission  -   

- as % of profit  -    -    -   
- others, specify  -    -    -   

5. Others, please specify  -    -    -   
(ReƟral Benefits)  3.50  0.92  4.42 
Total (C)  23.91  13.38  37.29 

(` In Lakhs)
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VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES :

Type SecƟon of the 
Companies 
Act, 2013

Brief 
DescripƟon

Details of 
Penalty/ 

Punishment/ 
Compounding 
fees imposed

Authority 
[RD/NCLT/

COURT]

Appeal 
made, if 
any (give 
Details)

A. COMPANY

None
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

None
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

None
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
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InformaƟon under SecƟon 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 :
A. ConservaƟon of Energy

(i) The steps taken or impact on 
conservaƟon of energy

Following steps taken for conservaƟon of energy during the year have 
reduced consumpƟon of energy:

(i) Replacement of old shuƩle looms with latest automated looms; 

(ii) ModificaƟon of convenƟonal spinning frames;

(iii) Replacement of convenƟonal tube lights with LED 20W tube lamps; 

(iv) Use of small capacitor banks to achieve beƩer power factor;

(v) Replacement of motors in spinning frames.

(ii) The steps taken by the company for 
uƟlising alternate sources of energy

Following steps are taken by the Company for uƟlising alternate sources 
of energy:

(i) The Company switched its source of power supply from CESC 
Supply Line to its own 3.14 MW CapƟve Power Plant running on 
HFO oil from 1st January, 2016; 

(ii) OpƟmum use of natural day light and safelux system to illuminate 
factory premises.

(iii) The capital investment on energy 
conservaƟon equipments 

No capital investment on energy conservaƟon equipment was made 
during the year under review. 

B. Technology AbsorpƟon

(i) The efforts made towards technology 
absorpƟon

The Company conƟnued its efforts to idenƟfy latest available 
technologies beneficial for the Jute Industry to replace old machines 
with the latest automated machines. 

(ii) The benefits derived like product 
improvement, cost reducƟon, product 
development or import subsƟtuƟon

Improvement in quality of product and operaƟonal efficiency. 

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported 
during the last three years reckoned 
from the beginning of the financial year)-

No technology has been imported during the last three years. 

a) the details of technology imported
b) the year of import
c) whether the technology been fully 

absorbed
d) if not fully absorbed, areas where 

absorpƟon has not taken place, and 
the reasons thereof and

(iv) the expenditure incurred on research  
and development

The Company does not have in-house research and development 
facility and therefore no expenditure has been incurred in this 
regard. 

C. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo :                
 (i) Foreign exchange earned in terms of actual inflow: ` 10,889.02
 (ii) Foreign exchange outgo in terms of actual ouƞlow: ` 3,644.31

For and on behalf of the Board
HARSH VARDHAN KANORIA

Chairman and Managing Director,
Chief ExecuƟve Officer

Kolkata, 25th May, 2016 DIN : 00060259
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ANNEXURE IV TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
(` in Lakhs)

MalaƟ Kanoria
Chairperson

CSR CommiƩee
DIN: 00253241

Hash Vardhan Kanoria 
Chairman and Managing Director,
Chief ExecuƟve Officer
DIN: 00060259

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) acƟviƟes containing parƟculars given in Annexure as per SecƟon 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 :

1. A brief outline of the Company's CSR policy, including overview of 
projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference 
to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs :

In accordance with the Company’s CSR policy the CSR acƟviƟes were 
undertaken during the year 2015-16 in the field of promoƟng educaƟon 
and health care.
The CSR Policy is available on Company's website (www.groupcheviot.net). 

2. The ComposiƟon of the CSR CommiƩee : The present members of the CSR CommiƩee consists of:
1. Mrs. MalaƟ Kanoria (Non-ExecuƟve Director) – Chairperson
2. Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan (Independent Director) – Member
3. Mr. Sushil Dhandhania (Independent Director) – Member

3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years : ` 3,638.84
4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in 

item 3 above) : ` 72.78
5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year

(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year : 
(b) Amount unspent, if any : 
(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial 
     year is detailed below :

` 72.78
` NIL

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Sl. 

No.
CSR Project 
or acƟvity 
idenƟfied

Sector in which the 
project is covered 
(clause no. of 
Schedule VII to the 
Companies Act, 
2013, as amended)

Projects or programs
(1) Local area or other
(2) Specify the State 
and district where 
projects or programs was 
undertaken

Amount 
outlay 
(budget) 
project or 
program-
wise

Amount spent on the 
projects or programs 
Sub-heads: (1) Direct 
expenditure on 
projects or programs 
(2) Overheads :

CumulaƟve 
expenditure 
up to the 
reporƟng 
period

Amount spent : 
Direct or through 
implemenƟng 
agency

5a. For 
promoƟng 
educaƟon

Cl. (ii)
EducaƟon

1. Other
2. Harni, Vadodara,
Gujarat, India

40.00 40.00* 40.00 Through 
ImplemenƟng 

Agency : 
Jan Priya Trust

5b. For 
promoƟng 
educaƟon 
and 
healthcare

Cl. (ii)
EducaƟon
Cl. (i)
Health care

1. Local Area
2. Gangarampur, 
D.H. Road, 
24 Parganas (South),
West Bengal, India

10.00 10.00* 10.00 Through 
ImplemenƟng 

Agency : 
Ramakrishna 

Sarada Mission, 
Gangarampur

5c. For 
promoƟng 
educaƟon

Cl. (ii)
EducaƟon

1. Local Area
2. Budge Budge,
24 Parganas (South), 
West Bengal, India

23.00 23.27* 23.27 Direct

Total 73.00 73.27 73.27
6. In case the Company has failed to spend the 2% of the average 

net profit of the last 3 financial years or any part thereof, reasons 
for not spending the amount in its Board Report :

Not applicable

7. A responsibility statement by the CSR CommiƩee that the 
implementaƟon and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance 
with CSR objecƟves and Policy of the Company :

The CSR CommiƩee confirms that the implementaƟon and monitoring 
of CSR Policy is in compliance with the CSR objecƟves and Policy of the 
Company.

*Represents Direct expenditure on projects or programs; Overheads Nil.
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ANNEXURE V TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Disclosure of remuneraƟon policy and criteria for determing qualificaƟons, posiƟve aƩributes, 
independence of a director
A. RemuneraƟon Policy  

 1. The objecƟves of this policy are to :

  1.1 Determine the level and composiƟon of remuneraƟon that will aƩract, retain and moƟvate directors, key 
managerial personnel, senior management personnel and other employees of the Company;

  1.2 Provide a well-balanced and performance based remuneraƟon package taking into account industry standard 
and relevant corporate regulaƟons.

 2. Policy principles

  The process of remuneraƟon shall be transparent, unbiased and conducted aŌer appraisal of the performance of 
each director and employee in accordance with his/her roles and responsibiliƟes within the organisaƟon against 
appropriate performance benchmarks. Their contribuƟon and value addiƟon for the growth of the Company 
shall be considered while fixing their remuneraƟon and subsequent promoƟon. The Company shall strive to pay 
an equitable remuneraƟon, capable of aƩracƟng and retaining high quality personnel taking into consideraƟon 
the market trend of remuneraƟon packages in the same sector.  RemuneraƟon package at various levels shall be 
standardised, keeping enough scope to make it flexible with a view to reward employees with excepƟonal talent 
and competence. The Company shall ensure that the remuneraƟon at various levels is affordable and sustainable. 

 3. RemuneraƟon to directors 

  Payments to directors by way of remuneraƟon, siƫng fee, commission are subject to the approval of Board and 
members of the Company and restricted to the overall maximum managerial remuneraƟon under SecƟon 197 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

  (a) RemuneraƟon to execuƟve directors

   1. Appointment / re-appointment of execuƟve directors shall be on contractual basis. The nominaƟon 
and remuneraƟon commiƩee shall idenƟfy qualified person for the posiƟon of execuƟve director and 
recommend their remuneraƟon to the Board of directors. Such proposal with or wihout modificaƟon 
shall be recommended by the Board to the members of the Company for approval. 

   2. The remuneraƟon to execuƟve director shall take into account the Company’s overall performance, 
execuƟve director’s contribuƟon for the same and the industry standards.

   3. RemuneraƟon to execuƟve director shall include fixed components of salary, allowances, medical 
insurance premium, perquisites and reƟrement benefits as may be decided by the nominaƟon and 
remuneraƟon commiƩee from Ɵme to Ɵme payable on monthly basis and commission on net profits. 
The total remuneraƟon shall be restricted within the overall maximum managerial remuneraƟon under 
SecƟon 197 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

   4. In the event of absence or inadequacy of profit in any financial year, the overall remuneraƟon to execuƟve 
directors shall be governed by SecƟon II of Part II of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

  (b) RemuneraƟon to non-execuƟve directors

   Non-execuƟve directors and independent directors shall be paid siƫng fee for every meeƟng of the Board 
of directors aƩended by them as member. In addiƟon, they shall be paid commission up to an aggregate 
amount not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the company for the year. The amount of commission shall 
be determined by the Board based on their aƩendance, Ɵme and effort devoted and any other contribuƟon 
to the organisaƟon.

 4. RemuneraƟon of key managerial personnel (KMP) and senior management personnel (SMP)

  RemuneraƟon to KMP and SMP is fixed at a level aimed at aƩracƟng and retaining execuƟves with professional 
and personal competence, showing good performance towards achieving Company goals. The fixed component 
of remuneraƟon shall include salary, allowances, medical insurance premium, perquisites and reƟrement benefits 
as may be determined by the nominaƟon and remuneraƟon commiƩee. In addiƟon, KMP and SMP shall have 
variable incenƟve linked with performance of previous year which shall be decided year on year basis. Ex-graƟa/
rewards are payable to KMP and SMP on outstanding performance of the Company. The remuneraƟon of the 
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KMP and SMP at the Ɵme of appointment would require approval of Board. 

  In accordance with the condiƟons of service with the Company, execuƟve directors, KMP and SMP would be 
eligible to seek interest-free loans and/or advances in order to meet any exigency which shall be repayable out 
of future salary earnings in agreed monthly installments. The management reserves the right to sancƟon amount 
of loan and/or advance and the period of repayment based on overall performance. 

B. Criteria for determining qualificaƟons, posiƟve aƩributes and independence of a director

 With the objecƟve of ensuring that the Company’s Board is competent at all points of Ɵme to be able to take decisions 
commensurate with the size and scale of operaƟons and complexiƟes of business, the nominaƟon and remuneraƟon 
commiƩee laid down the following criteria for determining qualificaƟons, posiƟve aƩributes and independence of a 
director:

 1. QualificaƟons :-

  • Person shall possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields of industry, finance, 
law, management, sales, markeƟng, administraƟon, research, corporate governance, operaƟons or other 
disciplines related to the Company’s business.

  • The person must be a graduate or equivalent to be a member of the Board. 

 2. PosiƟve aƩributes :-

  • Person shall uphold ethical standards and probity and shall have requisite experience and proficiency to 
direct and control business affairs; 

  • He/she shall have the ability to act objecƟvely and construcƟvely; 

  • Allocate sufficient Ɵme and aƩenƟon to the Company's performance and assist the Board in implemenƟng 
the best corporate governance pracƟces.

 3.  Independence :-

  A person willing to be inducted in the Board must abide by the following code of conduct to maintain independence 
in his/her judgements :

  • To ensure that personal interest do not conflict with interest of the Company;

  • To take utmost care and diligence in exercising the powers aƩached to the office in performance of the duƟes;

  • To act in accordance with the highest standards of personal and professional integrity & maintain honesty 
and ethical conduct in the best interests of the Company;

  • To ensure not to provide any informaƟon to the press and any other publicity media unless specifically 
authorised to do so;

  • To remain independent in judgments and acƟons in respect of all decisions taken by the Board;

  • To ensure that confidenƟal informaƟon acquired in the course of work is disclosed only if permiƩed by the 
Company or in accordance with requirements of law.

ANNEXURE V TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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ANNEXURE VI TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
(` in Lakhs)

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ 
WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

(i) The raƟo of the remuneraƟon of each director to the median remuneraƟon of the employees of the Company for the financial year :
Directors RaƟo
Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria, Chairman and Managing Director, Chief ExecuƟve Officer 188:1
Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal, WholeƟme Director 29:1
Mr. Parag Keshar BhaƩacharjee, Independent Director 3:1
Mr. Navin Nayar, Independent Director 3:1
Mr. Sushil Dhandhania, Independent Director 3:1
Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan, Independent Director 3:1
Mrs. MalaƟ Kanoria, Non ExecuƟve Director 3:1

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneraƟon of each director, chief financial officer, chief execuƟve officer, company secretary in the financial year :

Directors / Key Managerial Personnel % Increase / (Decrease)
Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria, Chairman and Managing Director, Chief ExecuƟve Officer 44%
Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal, WholeƟme Director 0%
Mr. Parag Keshar BhaƩacharjee, Independent Director 1%
Mr. Navin Nayar, Independent Director 0%
Mr. Sushil Dhandhania, Independent Director -1%
Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan, Independent Director -1%
Mrs. MalaƟ Kanoria, Non ExecuƟve Director 4%
Mr. Madhup Kumar Patni, Chief Financial Officer 14%
Mr. Aditya Banerjee, Company Secretary 20%

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneraƟon of employees in the financial year : 7%
(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company : (as on 31st March, 2016) 4168 employees
(v) The explanaƟon on the relaƟonship between average increase in remuneraƟon and Company performance :

During the year under review, the Company has reported an increase of more than 94% in its operaƟng profit. Due to the beƩer performance 
of the Company, the average increase in remuneraƟon to all employees including managerial personnel was higher around 13%.

(vi) Comparison of the remuneraƟon of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the Company :
Aggregate remuneraƟon of all key managerial personnel (KMPs) in FY 2015-16 ` 344.27 
Profit before Tax (PBT) in FY 2015-16 ` 5,098.30 
RemuneraƟon of KMPs (as % of overall performance of the Company)    6.75 

(vii) VariaƟons in the market capitalisaƟon of the Company, price earnings raƟo as at the closing date of the current financial year and previous 
financial year and percentage increase over or decrease in the market quotaƟons of the shares of the Company in comparison to the rate 
at which the Company came out with the last public offer :

As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015 VariaƟon % VariaƟon
Market CapitalisaƟon ` 32,458.44 ` 15,252.54 ` 17,205.90 112.81 
Price Earnings RaƟo 8.90 4.41 4.49 101.81 

As at 31st March, 2016 Last IPO on 24th January, 1995 Bonus Issue adjustment ^ % VariaƟon
Market Price (In `) 719.50 70.00 46.67 1441.68 
^ Adjusted for 2 : 1 bonus issue on 23rd September, 2006.

(viii) Average percenƟle increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year 
and its comparison with the percenƟle increase in the managerial remuneraƟon and jusƟficaƟon thereof and point out if there are any 
excepƟonal circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneraƟon :
The average percenƟle increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel of the Company in the year under 
review was around 12%. RemuneraƟon to managerial personnel have increased by around 36% mainly on account of increase in commission 
payable to managerial personnel as decided by the Board within the overall ceiling of 10% of the net profit of the Company computed under 
SecƟon 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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ANNEXURE VI TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
(` in Lakhs)

(ix) Comparison of the each remuneraƟon of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the Company :
Name of Key Managerial Personnel RemuneraƟon Profit Before Tax (PBT) % of PBT
Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria, Chairman and Managing 
Director, Chief ExecuƟve Officer

` 266.49 ` 5,098.30 5.23%

Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal, WholeƟme Director     ` 40.49 0.79%
Mr. Madhup Kumar Patni, Chief Financial Officer     ` 23.91 0.47%
Mr. Aditya Banerjee, Company Secretary    ` 13.38 0.26%

(x) The key parameters for any variable component of remuneraƟon availed by the directors : 
Commission is the variable component of remuneraƟon availed by the directors. Net profits for the year is the key parameter in determining 
the amount of commission payable to each director. 

(xi) The raƟo of the remuneraƟon of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but receive remuneraƟon in 
excess of the highest paid director during the year :
No employee received remuneraƟon in excess of the highest paid director, being the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

(xii) AffirmaƟon that the remuneraƟon is as per the remuneraƟon policy of the Company :
The Company affirms that the remuneraƟon paid to employees, who are covered under RemuneraƟon Policy is in accordance with the 
RemuneraƟon Policy of the Company. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(2) AND 5(3) OF THE COMPANIES 
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

Name DesignaƟon RemuneraƟon 
Received *

Nature of 
emloyment 

whether 
contractual or 

otherwise

QualificaƟons 
and 

Experience 

Date of 
commencement 
of employment

Age 
(Years)

Last 
employment 
held before 
joining the 
Company 

Name of 
director 
of the 

Company 
who is a 
relaƟve

Mr. Harsh Vardhan 
Kanoria

Chairman and 
Managing Director, 

Chief ExecuƟve 
Officer

` 266.49 Contractual 
basis

B. Com.,                                
42 Years

1st April, 1981 60 Bengal 
Tea and 

Industries 
Ltd., 

WholeƟme 
Director 
(3 Years)

Mrs. MalaƟ 
Kanoria, 

Non 
ExecuƟve 
Director 

* RemuneraƟon includes salary, allowances, Company’s contribuƟon to provident fund, provision for gratuity, commission on net profit, insurance 
premiums and value of certain perquisites evaluated on the basis of Income Tax Act and Rules.

For and on behalf of the Board
HARSH VARDHAN KANORIA

Chairman and Managing Director,
Chief ExecuƟve Officer

Kolkata, 25th May, 2016  DIN : 00060259
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Form No. MR – 3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

[Pursuant to SecƟon 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of The Companies
(Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 
The Members, 
CHEVIOT COMPANY LIMITED
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate pracƟces by M/s. CHEVIOT COMPANY LIMITED (hereinaŌer called the Company). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluaƟng the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 
and expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our verificaƟon of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the informaƟon provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised 
representaƟves during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during 
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016 (“the audit period”) complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place 
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporƟng made hereinaŌer : 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 
for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016 according to the provisions of : 
i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
ii) The SecuriƟes Contracts (RegulaƟon) Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder;
iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the RegulaƟons and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulaƟons made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
v) The following RegulaƟons and Guidelines prescribed under the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 :-
 (a) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SubstanƟal AcquisiƟon of Shares and Takeovers) RegulaƟons, 2011; 
 (b)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 2015;
 (c)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2009 

(Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period);
 (d)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) RegulaƟons, 2014 (Not Applicable 

to the Company during the audit period);
 (e)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue and LisƟng of Debt SecuriƟes) RegulaƟons, 2008 

(Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period);
 (f)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) RegulaƟons, 1993 

regarding the Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period);
 (g)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (DelisƟng of Equity Shares) RegulaƟons, 2009 (Not Applicable to the 

Company during the audit period);
 (h)  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of SecuriƟes) RegulaƟons, 1998 (Not Applicable to the 

Company during the audit period);
 (i) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 

and other applicable regulaƟons/guidelines/circulars issued by SEBI from Ɵme to Ɵme, to the extent applicable. 
We further report that having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and as per the representaƟon 
made by the Management, the Company has complied with the following laws applicable specifically to the Company :
(a) The Jute Manufactures Cess Act, 1983 and the rules made thereunder;
(b) Jute & Jute TexƟles Control Orders 2000 & 2016 (as applicable)  issued under EssenƟal CommodiƟes Act, 1955;
(c) Indian Boilers Act, 1923 and the rules made thereunder;
(d) The Special Economic Zones Act, 2005 and the rules made thereunder.

ANNEXURE VII TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following : 
 (i)  Secretarial Standards on meeƟngs of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General MeeƟngs (SS-2) issued by The 

InsƟtute of Company Secretaries of India, effecƟve from 1st July, 2015.
         (ii)  The LisƟng Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, RegulaƟons, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. menƟoned above.
We further report that :
The Board of directors of the Company is duly consƟtuted with proper balance of execuƟve directors, non-execuƟve 
directors and independent directors. There has been no change in the composiƟon of Board of directors during the period 
under review and the composiƟon of Board of directors of the Company is in conformity with the provisions of the Act. 
Adequate noƟce is given to all directors to schedule the Board meeƟngs, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further informaƟon and clarificaƟons on the 
agenda items before the meeƟng and for meaningful parƟcipaƟon at the meeƟng. 
Decisions at the Board meeƟngs were carried out unanimously. 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operaƟons of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulaƟons and guidelines.
We further report that during the audit period, the Company has no reportable specific events, acƟons having a major 
bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the laws, rules, regulaƟons, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above. 
This Report is to be read with our leƩer of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” and forms an integral part of this 
Report.

For MR & Associates
Company Secretaries 

[M  R  Goenka]
Partner

Place : Kolkata  FCS No. : 4515
Date : 14th May, 2016 C P No. : 2551

ANNEXURE VII TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)

“ANNEXURE – A”
To, 
The Members, 
CHEVIOT COMPANY LIMITED
Our report of even date is to be read along with this leƩer.
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
2. We have followed the Audit pracƟces and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 

the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verificaƟon was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and pracƟces we followed, provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.
4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representaƟon about the compliance of laws, rules and 

regulaƟons and happening of events etc.
5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulaƟons and standards is the 

responsibiliƟes of the management. Our examinaƟon was limited to the verificaƟon of procedures on test basis.
6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 

effecƟveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
For MR & Associates
Company Secretaries 

[M  R  Goenka]
Partner

Place : Kolkata  FCS No. : 4515
Date : 14th May, 2016 C P No. : 2551
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TO THE MEMBERS OF CHEVIOT COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Cheviot Company Limited (“the Company”) which comprise 
the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended 
and a summary of the significant accounƟng policies and other explanatory informaƟon.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the maƩers stated in SecƟon 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) with respect to the preparaƟon of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial posiƟon, 
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounƟng principles generally accepted 
in India, including the AccounƟng Standards specified under SecƟon 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounƟng records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for prevenƟng and detecƟng frauds and 
other irregulariƟes; selecƟon and applicaƟon of appropriate accounƟng policies; making judgments and esƟmates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementaƟon and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng records, relevant to the preparaƟon 
and presentaƟon of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounƟng and audiƟng standards and maƩers which are 
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on AudiƟng specified under SecƟon 143(10) of the Act. Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparaƟon of the financial statements that give a true and 
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluaƟng 
the appropriateness of the accounƟng policies used and the reasonableness of the accounƟng esƟmates made by the 
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluaƟng the overall presentaƟon of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, the aforesaid financial 
statements give the informaƟon required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounƟng principles generally accepted in India :

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2016;

b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, ("the Order") issued by the Central Government under SecƟon 
143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the maƩers specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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2. As required by SecƟon143 (3) of the Act, we report that :

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the informaƟon and explanaƟons which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examinaƟon of those books.

 (c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the AccounƟng Standards specified under SecƟon 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

 (e) On the basis of the wriƩen representaƟons received from the directors as on 31st March, 2016 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2016 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of SecƟon 164 (2) of theAct.

 (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporƟng of the Company and the 
operaƟng effecƟveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure B, and 

 (g) With respect to the other maƩers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to 
the explanaƟons given to us: 

  (i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending liƟgaƟons on its financial posiƟon in its financial statements 
– Refer note no. 47. b to the financial statements.

  (ii)  The company did not have any long term contracts including derivaƟve contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses. 

  (iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor EducaƟon and 
ProtecƟon Fund by the Company.

For Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants

  RegistraƟon No.: 302023E
P-21/22, Radhabazar Street, CA P. K. Jain
Kolkata - 700 001 Partner 
Dated the 25th day of May, 2016 Membership No. 52018

Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditors Report
(i) a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full parƟculars including quanƟtaƟve details and situaƟon 

of Fixed Assets. 
 b) There is a regular program of physical verificaƟon by the management, which in our opinion is reasonable, having 

regard to the size of the Company and the nature of fixed assets. No material discrepancies have been noƟced in 
respect of the assets physically verified during the year.

 c)   According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and on the basis of our examinaƟon of the records of 
the Company, the Ɵtle deeds of immovable properƟes are held in the name of the Company.

(ii) a)  Inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion, the frequency of 
verificaƟon is reasonable. 

 b)  The procedures of physical verificaƟon of stocks followed by the management are adequate in relaƟon to the size 
of the Company and the nature of its business.

 c)  The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory. No material discrepancies were noƟced on verificaƟon, 
between the physical stocks and book records, and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of 
account.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (Contd.)
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(` in Lakhs)

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans during the year to the parƟes covered in the register maintained under 
secƟon 189 of the Companies Act. Accordingly the provisions of clauses (iii) (a), (b) & (c) are not applicable to the 
Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of secƟons 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year. 
(vi) On the basis of records produced, we are of the opinion that, prima facie, the cost records prescribed by the Central 

Government under secƟon 148 (1) of the Act have been maintained by the Company. However, we are not required to 
carry out and have not carried out any detailed examinaƟon of such cost records. 

(vii) a)  According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and the records examined by us, the Company is regular 
in deposiƟng undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales 
Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Value Added Tax, Excise Duty and Cess and any other statutory dues with the 
appropriate authoriƟes and there are no undisputed statutory dues outstanding as at 31st March, 2016, for a 
period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 b) According to the records of the Company, the following dues are not deposited on account of disputes pending at 
various forums.

Name of the Statute Nature of dues Amount (`) Year/Period to which
amount relates

Forum where 
dispute is pending

West Bengal Sales Tax Act, 1994,
West Bengal VAT Act, 2003 and
Central Sales Tax Act, 1956

Sales tax
and VAT

   0.22 1993-94 Revision Level
   0.10 2006-07 Revision Level
   0.39 2008-09 Revision Level

  15.88 2011-12 * Revision Level
69.85 2012-13 ** Appeal Level

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 90.12 2008-09 Appeal Level
   6.36 2009-10 Tribunal Level

  36.24 2010-11 Appeal Level
  20.38 2011-12 Appeal Level

15.81 2012-13 Appeal Level
Wealth Tax Act, 1957 Wealth tax 115.13 2007-08 Appeal Level

107.62 2008-09 Appeal Level
Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise duty 4,764.37 March-11-February-13 Tribunal Level

GRAND TOTAL : 5,242.47
*   Further deposited ` 13.07
** Further deposited ` 24.23

(viii) Based on the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the Company has not defaulted during the year in repayment 
of loans or borrowings to any financial insƟtuƟon or bank. 

(ix)  The Company has not raised any money by way of iniƟal public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
and term loans during the year. According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons received, the Company has not given 
any guarantees for loans taken by others from bank or financial insƟtuƟons. 

(x)  Based on audit procedures performed and the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, we report that no fraud on 
or by the Company has been noƟced or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the 
management. 

(xi)  According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and based on our examinaƟon of the records of the 
Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneraƟon in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of SecƟon 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

(xii)  In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
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(xiii) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and based on our examinaƟon of the records of the 
Company, transacƟons with the related parƟes are in compliance with SecƟons 177 and 188 of the Act where 
applicable and details of such transacƟons have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the 
applicable accounƟng standards.

(xiv) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and based on our examinaƟon of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not made any preferenƟal allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
converƟble debentures during the year.

(xv)  According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and based on our examinaƟon of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transacƟons with directors or persons connected with them.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under SecƟon 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants

  RegistraƟon No.: 302023E
P-21/22, Radhabazar Street, CA P. K. Jain
Kolkata - 700 001 Partner 
Dated the 25th day of May, 2016 Membership No. 52018

Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-secƟon 3 of SecƟon 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporƟng of Cheviot Company Limited (“the Company”) as 
of 31st March, 2016 in conjuncƟon with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporƟng criteria established by the Company considering the essenƟal components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial ReporƟng issued by 
the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibiliƟes include the design, implementaƟon and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevenƟon and 
detecƟon of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng records, and the Ɵmely preparaƟon of 
reliable financial informaƟon, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporƟng based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial ReporƟng (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on AudiƟng, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporƟng was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effecƟvely in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporƟng and their operaƟng effecƟveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporƟng included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporƟng, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and tesƟng and evaluaƟng the design and operaƟng effecƟveness of internal control based 
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on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporƟng. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial ReporƟng 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporƟng is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporƟng and the preparaƟon of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounƟng principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporƟng 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transacƟons and disposiƟons of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transacƟons are recorded as necessary to permit preparaƟon of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounƟng principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisaƟons of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevenƟon 
or Ɵmely detecƟon of unauthorised acquisiƟon, use, or disposiƟon of the company's assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent LimitaƟons of Internal Financial Controls over Financial ReporƟng 

Because of the inherent limitaƟons of internal financial controls over financial reporƟng, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projecƟons of any evaluaƟon of the internal financial controls over financial reporƟng to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporƟng may become inadequate because of 
changes in condiƟons, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporƟng and such internal financial controls over financial reporƟng were operaƟng effecƟvely as at 31 March 2016, based 
on the internal control over financial reporƟng criteria established by the Company considering the essenƟal components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟng issued by 
the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants

  RegistraƟon No.: 302023E
P-21/22, Radhabazar Street, CA P. K. Jain
Kolkata - 700 001 Partner 
Dated the 25th day of May, 2016 Membership No. 52018
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ParƟculars Note  As at  
 31st March, 2016 

 As at  
 31st March, 2015

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
 Shareholders' funds 

 Share capital 2  451.48  451.48 
 Reserves and surplus 3  41,357.95  35,243.36 

 41,809.43  35,694.84 
 Non-current liabiliƟes 

 Deferred tax liabiliƟes (net) 4  106.33  108.11 
 Other long-term liabiliƟes 5  8.05  10.36 

 114.38  118.47 
 Current liabiliƟes 

Short-term borrowings 6  1,259.24  1,402.55 
Trade payables 7

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises  –    –   
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises  932.54  814.15 

Other current liabiliƟes 8  454.07  278.43 
Short-term provisions 9  508.71  1,447.79 

 3,154.56  3,942.92 
TOTAL  45,078.37  39,756.23 

 ASSETS 
 Non-current assets 

 Fixed assets 10
      Tangible assets  14,377.60  11,101.65 
      Intangible assets  118.65  110.13 
      Capital work-in-progress 80.94 0.75
      Intangible assets under development 1.00 5.42

 14,578.19  11,217.95 
 Non-current investments 11  16,245.54  16,863.29 
 Long-term loans and advances 12  151.26  60.98 
 Other non-current assets 13  347.51  332.59 

 31,322.50  28,474.81 
 Current assets 

 Current investments 14  2,503.36  2,480.65 
 Inventories 15  5,928.92  4,525.86 
 Trade receivables 16  2,970.27  2,463.76 
 Cash and bank balances 17  841.14  751.45 
 Short-term loans and advances 18  979.06  612.77 
 Other current assets 19  533.12  446.93 

 13,755.87  11,281.42 
TOTAL  45,078.37  39,756.23 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2016
(` in Lakhs)

The accompanying notes 1 to 50 are an integral part of these financial statements
For and on behalf of the Board 

Harsh Vardhan Kanoria 
Chairman and Managing Director,  

Chief ExecuƟve Officer 
DIN : 00060259 

CA Madhup Kumar Patni
Chief Financial Officer

As per our report aƩached
For Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants 
RegistraƟon No. : 302023E
CA P. K. Jain
Partner 
Membership No. 52018
Dated : 25th day of May, 2016

Navin Nayar
Director

DIN : 00136057

CS Aditya Banerjee 
Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

ParƟculars Note  For the year ended                  
31st March, 2016 

For the year ended                  
31st March, 2015

Revenue from operaƟons (gross) 20  34,533.22  26,846.05 
Less : Jute manufacturing cess  229.42  146.52 
Revenue from operaƟons (net)  34,303.80  26,699.53 
Other income 21  1,271.66  2,166.73 
Total revenue  35,575.46  28,866.26 
Expenses :
Cost of materials consumed 22  19,261.23  13,306.98 
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 23  (958.16)  209.26 
Employee benefits expenses 24  5,658.84  4,678.41 
Finance costs 25  81.63  86.72 
DepreciaƟon and amorƟsaƟon expense 26  572.93  648.26 
Other expenses 27  5,860.69  5,802.52 
Total expenses  30,477.16  24,732.15 
Profit before excepƟonal item and tax  5,098.30  4,134.11 
ExcepƟonal item :
Provision against indirect taxes refundable wriƩen back –  97.45 
Profit before tax  5,098.30  4,231.56 
Tax expenses :

Current tax  1,453.00  749.00 
Tax for earlier years (net)  (0.39)  1.10 
Deferred tax  (1.78)  23.37 

Profit for the year  3,647.47  3,458.09 
Earnings per ordinary share (face value of ` 10 each)
Basic & diluted (in `) 28  80.85  76.65 

(` in Lakhs)

The accompanying notes 1 to 50 are an integral part of these financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board 
Harsh Vardhan Kanoria 

Chairman and Managing Director,  
Chief ExecuƟve Officer 

DIN : 00060259 

CA Madhup Kumar Patni
Chief Financial Officer

As per our report aƩached
For Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants 
RegistraƟon No. : 302023E
CA P. K. Jain
Partner 
Membership No. 52018
Dated : 25th day of May, 2016

Navin Nayar
Director

DIN : 00136057

CS Aditya Banerjee 
Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016
(` in Lakhs)

ParƟculars For the year ended 
31st March, 2016

For the year ended 
31st March, 2015

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net profit before tax  5,098.30  4,231.56 
Adjustments for : 
DepreciaƟon and amorƟsaƟon expense  572.93  648.26 
Unrealised foreign exchange differences loss   22.61  13.47 
Profit on sale of fixed assets (net)  (18.31)  (4.02)
Net gain on sale of investments  (88.74)  (991.33)
Interest income  (426.85)  (473.88)
Dividend income  (529.24)  (561.70)
DiminuƟon in value of current investments  –    219.35 
Provision for doubƞul receivables  (1.34)  13.30 
Finance costs  81.63  86.72 
Miscellaneous receipts  (4.20)  (391.51)  (4.14)  (1,053.97)
OperaƟng profit before working capital changes  4,706.79  3,177.59 
Adjustments for :  
Trade receivables  (538.61)  205.24 
Loans and advances and other assets  (441.86)  (412.30)
Inventories  (1,403.06)  353.83 
Trade payables, other liabiliƟes and provisions  274.93  (2,108.60)  (291.43)  (144.66)
Cash generated from operaƟons  2,598.19  3,032.93 
Direct taxes paid (net of refund)  (1,494.41)  (712.00)
Net cash from operaƟng acƟviƟes  1,103.78  2,320.93 

 B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of fixed assets (including changes in capital work-in-
progress/advances)  (663.42)  (262.54)
Capital subsidy received  33.64  –   
Sale of fixed assets  31.24  18.68 
Purchase of investments  (17,263.68)  (9,850.35)
Sale of investments  17,947.46  7,214.99 
Decrease in fixed deposits with a maturity more than 90 days  99.85  0.31 
Miscellaneous receipts  3.93  3.87 
Interest received  411.64  813.29 
Dividend received  509.06  545.89 
Net cash from/(used) in invesƟng acƟviƟes  1,109.72  (1,515.86)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Repayment of long-term / current maturiƟes of long term 
borrowings

 
(20.00)

 
(15.00)

(Decrease) / Increase in short term borrowings  (141.28)  113.70 
Dividend paid  (1,533.82)  (676.69)
Dividend distribuƟon tax paid  (312.26)  (115.00)
Finance costs  (62.08)  (81.59)
Net cash used in financing acƟviƟes  (2,069.44)  (774.58)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  144.06  30.49 
Cash and cash equivalents (opening balance)  580.23  550.11 
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  (0.28)  (0.37)
Cash and cash equivalents (closing balance)  724.01  580.23 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016 (Contd.)

ParƟculars For the year ended 
31st March, 2016

For the year ended 
31st March, 2015

Notes to the Cash Flow Statement 
1. Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement  

comprise the following balance sheet amounts:  
Cash on hand  8.46  7.25 
Balances with banks 

- in current accounts  715.55  572.98 
Cash and cash equivalents (closing balance)  724.01  580.23 
Add: Fixed deposit account –  100.00 
Add: Restricted cash 
Fixed deposit accounts (under lien)  2.09  0.89 
FracƟonal bonus share account  0.44  0.44 
Unpaid dividend accounts  114.60  69.89 
Cash and bank balances (closing balance)  841.14  751.45 

2. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under 
'Indirect Method' as set out in the AccounƟng Standard - 3 
on 'Cash Flow Statement'. 

3. Figures in brackets represent ouƞlows / deducƟons. 
4. Previous year's figures have been re-grouped / re-arranged 

wherever necessary to make them comparable. 

(` in Lakhs)

The accompanying notes 1 to 50 are an integral part of these financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board 
Harsh Vardhan Kanoria 

Chairman and Managing Director,  
Chief ExecuƟve Officer 

DIN : 00060259 

CA Madhup Kumar Patni
Chief Financial Officer

As per our report aƩached
For Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants 
RegistraƟon No. : 302023E
CA P. K. Jain
Partner 
Membership No. 52018
Dated : 25th day of May, 2016

Navin Nayar
Director

DIN : 00136057

CS Aditya Banerjee 
Company Secretary
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 a. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
  The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convenƟon, except for certain fixed assets which 

have been revalued, on an accrual basis, in accordance with the applicable mandatory AccounƟng Standards and 
as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The accounƟng policies, unless specifically stated to 
be otherwise, have been consistently applied by the Company.

 b. FIXED ASSETS 
  i. Fixed assets, other than those revalued, are stated at cost/book value less capital subsidy, accumulated 

depreciaƟon/amorƟsaƟon and impairment losses, if any.
  ii. Cost comprises purchase price, non refundable taxes, duƟes, freight and incidental expenses related to 

the acquisiƟon and installaƟon of the assets as well as finance charges wherever applicable relaƟng to 
borrowed funds aƩributable to construcƟon/acquisiƟon of fixed assets for the period up to commencement 
of commercial producƟon/assets put into use.

  iii. Intangible assets comprise of soŌware, expected to provide future enduring economic benefits are stated 
at cost less accumulated amorƟsaƟon. Cost comprises purchase price and directly aƩributable expenditure 
on making the asset ready for its intended use. 

  iv. In respect of revalued assets, the difference between wriƩen down value of the assets as on the date of 
revaluaƟon and the then replacement value is transferred to revaluaƟon reserve.  

 c. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 
  DepreciaƟon/amorƟsaƟon on the Company's fixed assets has been charged on the following basis:
  i. On assets added up to 30th November, 1975, on assets pertaining to Falta Special Economic Zone (SEZ) Unit 

and on assets added on and aŌer 1st April, 1999 except land and building - wriƩen down value method on 
cost / subsƟtuted cost less residual value based on useful lives, as specified in Schedule II of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

  ii. On assets added from 1st December, 1975 to 31st March, 1999 and on land and building excluding leasehold 
land and assets pertaining to Falta SEZ Unit- straight line method on cost/subsƟtuted cost less residual value 
based on useful lives, as specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

  iii. Cost of leasehold land is being amorƟsed over the period of lease. 
  iv. DepreciaƟon / impact of disposal on revalued porƟon is transfered from revaluaƟon reserve to general 

reserve at year end. 
  v. SoŌware is being amorƟsed over a period of ten years under straight line method.   
  vi. DepreciaƟon on amounts capitalised on account of foreign exchange fluctuaƟon is provided prospecƟvely 

over the residual life of the assets. 
 d. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS 
  An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment 

loss is to be charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is idenƟfied as impaired. 
The impairment loss, if recognised in any accounƟng period, is reversible if there is any change in the esƟmate of 
recoverable amount.  

 e. INVESTMENTS 
  Investments are classified into current and long-term investments. Current investments, except for current 

maturiƟes of long-term investments, are stated at the lower of cost and fair value. Long-term investments 
are stated at cost less provision, if any, for diminuƟon other than temporary diminuƟon in the value of such 
investments.

  Market value of quoted mutual funds is arrived at by considering Net Asset Value (NAV).
 f. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS 
  i. TransacƟons in foreign currency, other than those relaƟng to fixed assets, are recorded in equivalent rupee 

value at rates exisƟng at the Ɵme at which transacƟons take place. Year end balances in current assets and 
liabiliƟes are restated at the year end exchange rate and the resultant translaƟon gains/losses, if any, arising 
thereon are credited/charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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  ii. In respect of transacƟons covered by forward exchange contracts, premium or discount, where there are 
underlying assets / liabiliƟes, is amorƟsed as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss over 
the life of the contract. Further, exchange difference on such contracts i.e. difference between the exchange 
rate at the reporƟng/seƩlement date and the exchange rate on the date of incepƟon/the last reporƟng 
date, is recognised as income or expense for the period.

  iii. Outstanding forward contracts for firm commitment and highly probable forecast transacƟons are marked 
to market and the resulƟng loss, if any, is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gain, if any, on such 
mark to market is not recognised as a prudent accounƟng policy.

 g. INVENTORIES 
  i. Raw materials, stores and spares and loose tools are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. 

However, items held for use in the producƟon of inventories are not wriƩen down below cost, if the finished 
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is computed on 
weighted average basis.

  ii. Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Finished goods 
and work-in-progress include cost of conversion, cess and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present locaƟon and condiƟon. Cost is computed on weighted average basis.

   Adequate provision is made for obsolete and slow-moving stocks, wherever necessary. 
 h. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand, cash balances with banks and highly liquid and 

readily converƟble financial instruments with original maturiƟes, at the date of purchase/investment, of three 
months or less. 

 i. BORROWING COSTS
  Borrowing costs that are directly aƩributable to the acquisiƟon or construcƟon of a qualifying asset is capitalised 

as part of the cost of such asset Ɵll such Ɵme the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying asset is one 
that necessarily takes a substanƟal period of Ɵme to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are 
charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

 j. RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
  i. Defined ContribuƟon Plans 
   ContribuƟons to Provident Fund, Pension Scheme and Employees’ State Insurance Scheme are defined 

contribuƟon schemes and are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year. The Company makes 
specified monthly contribuƟons towards employees provident fund to a trust administered by the Company 
as well as to provident fund plan operated by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The interest 
which is payable every year by the trust to the beneficiaries is noƟfied by the Government. The Company 
has an obligaƟon to make good the shorƞall, if any, between the return from the investments of the trust 
and the noƟfied interest rate. 

  ii. Defined Benefit Plans 
   Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligaƟon and is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuaƟon made 

at the end of each financial year using projected unit credit method.
   Short term compensated absences are recognised on an undiscounted, accrual basis during the period 

when the employee renders service. Long-term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial 
valuaƟon.

   Actuarial gains/losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
 k. REVENUE RECOGNITION 
  i. Sales are recognised on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods to the buyer for 

a consideraƟon. Sales are net of sales tax, VAT and returns. Cess recovered from buyers separately is shown 
as reducƟon from sales, whereas cess on other sales which is not recovered is charged to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

  ii. Interest income is accounted for on Ɵme proporƟon basis taking into account the amount outstanding and 
rate applicable.

  iii. Dividend income is accounted for in the year in which the right to receive the same is established.
  iv. Revenue generated out of and related to Company’s normal operaƟons is considered as other operaƟng 

revenue.
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 l. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 
  Grants from Government are recognised on compliance of condiƟons and on reasonable assurance of the same 

being received. Capital incenƟves are shown as deducƟon from the gross value of the specific fixed assets. 
Revenue grants related to export incenƟves are shown under the head of other operaƟng revenue and other 
grants are deducted from the related expense. 

 m. PROVISIONS FOR CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX 
  Provision for current tax is computed aŌer taking into consideraƟon benefits admissible under the provisions of 

the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax resulƟng from Ɵming difference between book profits and taxable profits 
is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or substanƟvely enacted as on the Balance Sheet 
date. Deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward if there is a reasonable certainty that the asset will be 
realised in future.

 n. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS 
  Provisions involving substanƟal degree of esƟmaƟon in measurement are recognised when there is present 

obligaƟon as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an ouƞlow of resources. ConƟngent 
liabiliƟes are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes. ConƟngent assets are neither recognised nor 
disclosed in the financial statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

No. of 
Shares              

 % No. of 
Shares

%

List of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of total number of 
shares issued by the Company :
Harsh Investments Private Limited (Holding Company) 25,74,081 57.06 25,74,081 57.06
Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria 3,43,840 7.62 3,43,840 7.62
Mrs. MalaƟ Kanoria 2,85,150 6.32 2,85,150 6.32

(` in Lakhs)

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

2.   SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
70,00,000 (Previous year 70,00,000) Ordinary shares of ` 10/- each 700.00 700.00
Issued and Subscribed
45,11,250 (Previous year 45,11,250) Ordinary shares of ` 10/- each fully 
paid-up 451.13 451.13
7,000 (Previous year 7,000) Ordinary shares of ` 10/- each not fully 
paid-up and forfeited (amount originally paid-up) 0.35 0.35

451.48 451.48

No. of Shares No. of Shares
ReconciliaƟon of Number of Shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  45,11,250  45,11,250 
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 
25,74,081 shares (Previous year 25,74,081 shares) are held by the 
Holding Company, Harsh Investments Private Limited

 45,11,250  45,11,250 

Terms / Rights aƩached to Ordinary shares
The Company has only one class of Ordinary shares having a par 
value of ` 10/- per share. Each holder of Ordinary shares is enƟtled 
to one vote per share and is enƟtled to dividend and to parƟcipate 
in surplus, if any, in the event of winding up.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016
(` in Lakhs)

As at 
31st March, 2016

As at 
31st March, 2015

3.   RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Capital Reserve       
As per last Balance Sheet 0.24 0.24 
Capital RedempƟon Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 9.92 9.92 
SecuriƟes Premium Account
As per last Balance Sheet 1,242.50 1,242.50 
RevaluaƟon Reserve       
As per last Balance Sheet 6,697.69 6,752.99 
Add : Increase on revaluaƟon made as on 31st March 2016 (Refer Note 29) 3,390.16                            –   

10,087.85 6,752.99 
Less : Transfer to general reserve on account of depreciaƟon adjustment                            –   (37.57)
Less : Transfer to general reserve towards current year depreciaƟon (17.42) (17.47)
Less : Transfer to general reserve on disposal of fixed assets                  (1.66) (0.26)

10,068.77 6,697.69 
Special Economic Zone Re-investment Reserve Account
(for claiming deducƟon u/s 10AA of the Income Tax Act, 1961)
As per last Balance Sheet 702.13                   544.94 
Add : Transfer from surplus out of profit for the year 25.00 350.00 

727.13        894.94 
Less : UƟlised during the year transfer to general reserve              98.87 192.81 

       628.26        702.13 
General Reserve       
As per last Balance Sheet 26,055.81 23,767.06 
Less : DepreciaƟon adjustment for change in useful lives in previous year  
(net of deferred tax ` 36.97) – 109.36

    26,055.81 23,657.70 
Add : Transfer from surplus 2,650.00 2,150.00 
Add : Transfer from special economic zone re-investment reserve account 98.87       192.81 
Add : Transfer from revaluaƟon reserve 19.08          55.30 

   28,823.76  26,055.81 
Surplus       
As per last Balance Sheet 535.07        500.02 
Add : Profit for the year     3,647.47    3,458.09 

   4,182.54      3,958.11 
Less: AppropriaƟons

Interim dividend paid          766.91                            –   
Tax on interim dividend         156.13                            –   
Proposed dividend                            –       766.91 
Tax on proposed dividend                            –         156.13 
Transfer to general reserve      2,650.00     2,150.00 
Transfer to special economic zone re-investment reserve account          25.00       350.00 

       584.50         535.07 
41,357.95 35,243.36 
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As at 
31st March, 2016

As at 
31st March, 2015

4.   DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)  
Deferred tax liabiliƟes 
    Related to fixed assets  241.46  232.77 
Deferred tax assets 
    Disallowances under the Income Tax Act, 1961  135.13  124.66 
Net deferred tax liabiliƟes  106.33  108.11 

5.   OTHER LONG - TERM LIABILITIES   
Trade payables 
     Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  –    –   
     Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
     and small enterprises  –    2.79 
Others 
     Security deposits  8.05  7.57 

 8.05  10.36 

6.    SHORT - TERM BORROWINGS  
Working capital loan (secured)
From State Bank of India 
     Cash credit account  816.64  1,402.55 
     Pre-shipment credit in foreign currency  442.60  –   

 1,259.24  1,402.55 

Secured by hypothecaƟon of stocks, book debts and certain other assets on first charge basis and all movable fixed assets 
on second charge basis and by mortgage of specific immovable properƟes both present and future by deposit of Ɵtle 
deeds, subject to prior charge created in favour of Export Import Bank of India.     

7.    TRADE PAYABLES   
Trade payables 
     Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  –    –   
     Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
     and small enterprises  932.54  814.15 

 932.54  814.15 

8.   OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES  
Current maturiƟes of long term debt *  –    20.00 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  –    0.20 
Unpaid dividends **  114.60  69.89 
Other payables 
     FracƟonal bonus share proceeds unclaimed  0.44  0.44 
     Advance from customers  89.60  21.75 
     Creditors for capital expenditure  2.04  –   
     Statutory dues  243.29  156.98 
     Security deposits  4.10  9.17 

 454.07  278.43 

* Debts from Export Import Bank of India secured by hypothecaƟon of all movable fixed assets on first charge basis and all current assets on 
second charge basis and by mortgage of specific immovable properƟes both present and future by deposit of Ɵtle deeds on first charge basis 
has been saƟsfied during the year.

**  No amounts are due and outstanding to be credited to Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund.
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As at 
31st March, 2016

As at 
31st March, 2015

9.    SHORT - TERM PROVISIONS  

Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 44) 
       Unencashed leave  293.03  261.83 
Others 
       Income and wealth tax (net of advance tax)  29.56  76.80 
       Proposed dividend  –    766.91 
       Tax on proposed dividend  –    156.13 
       ConƟngencies (Refer Note 47)  186.12  186.12 

 508.71  1,447.79 

10.    FIXED ASSETS
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION/AMORTISATION NET BLOCK

PARTICULARS EsƟmated 
Cost / Revalu-
aƟon and / or 

Book Value 
as at 31st

March, 2015

AddiƟons
during

the Year

Increase on 
RevaluaƟon

(Refer 
Note 29)

DeducƟons/
Adjustments

during the
year

EsƟmated
Cost / Revalu-
aƟon and / or 

Book Value 
as at 31st

March, 2016

Upto
31st

March, 
2015

Adjusted
with

general
reserve

For
 the 
Year

Deduc-
Ɵons

Upto
31st

March, 
2016

As at 
31st

March, 
2016

As at 
31st

March, 
2015

Tangible Assets

Freehold land  6,257.10  –    3,390.16  –    9,647.26  –    –    –    –    –    9,647.26  6,257.10 
Leasehold land  23.16  –    –    –    23.16  3.86  –    0.24  –    4.10  19.06  19.30 
Buildings  7,601.93  –    –    –    7,601.93  4,448.81  –    119.63  –    4,568.44  3,033.49  3,153.12 
Plant and 
equipment  10,902.25  469.11  –    139.42  11,231.94  9,515.02  –    352.47  92.48  9,775.01  1,456.93  1,387.23 
Electrical 
installaƟons and 
equipments  1,391.93  3.15  –    0.66  1,394.42  1,265.99  –    27.88  0.56  1,293.31  101.11  125.94 
Furniture and 
fixtures  338.73  –    –    –    338.73  281.36  –    17.84  –    299.20  39.53  57.37 
Vehicles  141.68  19.40  –    21.57  139.51  67.10  –    28.30  17.31  78.09  61.42  74.58 

Office equipments  310.17  3.69  –    1.29  312.57  283.16  –    11.85  1.24  293.77  18.80  27.01 

 26,966.95  495.35  3,390.16  162.94  30,689.52  15,865.30  –    558.21  111.59  16,311.92  14,377.60  11,101.65 

Capital work-in-
progress  0.75  80.94  –    0.75  80.94  –    –    –    –    –    80.94  0.75 
Sub Total (A)  26,967.70  576.29  3,390.16  163.69  30,770.46  15,865.30  –    558.21  111.59  16,311.92  14,458.54  11,102.40 

Intangible Assets 
(acquired)
Computer 
soŌware  166.08  23.24  –    –    189.32  55.95  –    14.72  –    70.67  118.65  110.13 
Intangible 
assets under 
development  5.42  1.00  –    5.42  1.00  –    –    –    –    –    1.00  5.42 
Sub Total (B)  171.50  24.24  –    5.42  190.32  55.95  –    14.72  –    70.67  119.65  115.55 

Total (A+B)  27,139.20  600.53  3,390.16  169.11  30,960.78  15,921.25  –    572.93  111.59  16,382.59  14,578.19  11,217.95 

Previous Year  26,865.44  354.10  -    80.34  27,139.20  15,190.85  146.33  648.26  64.19  15,921.25  11,217.95 –
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Face 
Value

per share/ 
unit (`)

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

 Shares / 
Units  Amount 

 Shares / 
Units Amount 

11. NON - CURRENT INVESTMENTS 
Long Term Investments - At cost

A. Non Trade Investments (Quoted)
(a) Investments in Equity Instruments - Fully paid-up

Infosys Limited 5  5,000  51.94  5,000  103.87 
Reliance CommunicaƟons Limited 5  10,000  32.29  38,000  122.71 
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 10  2,500  38.79  10,000  155.16 

(b) Investments in Preference Shares - Fully paid-up
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited

6.00% Non-ConverƟble Bonus Preference Shares 1  6,00,00,000  501.39  2,50,00,000  196.01 
Infrastructure Leasing & Financial Services Limited

16.46% Non-ConverƟble Redeemable CumulaƟve Preference Shares 7,500  1,360  204.00  –     –   
(c) Investments in Debentures or Bonds - Fully paid-up

Housing and Urban Development CorporaƟon Limited
7.83% Tax Free Bonds, Series B (OpƟon II), 11-NOV-2026 1,00,000  200  200.00  200  200.00 
8.51% Tax Free Bonds, Tranche-I, Series 2A, 25-OCT-2028 1,000  20,000  200.00  20,000  200.00 

 India Infoline Finance Limited
NiŌy Linked Debentures 04-JUL-2016 1,00,000  –     –   *  160  203.36 

 India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited 
8.66% Tax Free Bonds, Tranche II, Series 3A, 22-JAN-2034 1,000  50,000  500.00  50,000  500.00 
8.55% Tax Free Bonds, Tranche III, Series 3A, 27-MAR-2034 1,000  30,000  300.00  30,000  300.00 

Indian Railway Finance CorporaƟon Limited
6.30% Tax Free Bonds, Series 68A, 08-MAR-2017 1,00,000  –     –   *  100  100.00 
6.70% Tax Free Bonds, Series 68B, 08-MAR-2020 1,00,000  300  302.80  300  302.80 
6.32% Tax Free Bonds, Series 73A, 20-DEC-2017 1,00,000  200  200.00  200  200.00 
6.72% Tax Free Bonds, Series 73B, 20-DEC-2020 1,00,000  200  200.00  200  200.00 

Indian Renewable Energy Development Agency Limited
8.55% Tax Free Bonds, Tranche I, Series IIIA, 13-MAR-2034 1,000  40,000  400.00  40,000  400.00 

NaƟonal Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development
Zero Coupon Bonds, Series BNB JAN 2019 20,000  8,500  992.66  5,575  559.99 

NaƟonal Highways Authority of India
8.30% Tax Free Bonds, OpƟon Tranche 1, Series 2 (II), 25-JAN-2027 1,000  4,945  49.45  4,945  49.45 
8.50% Tax Free Bonds, OpƟon Tranche I, Series IIA, 05-FEB-2029 1,000  40,000  400.00  40,000  400.00 
7.28% Tax Free Bonds, Series - II B, 18-SEP-2030 10,00,000  20  200.26  –     –   

NaƟonal Housing Bank
8.76% Tax Free Bonds, Tranche I, Series 3A, 13-JAN-2034 5,000  6,166  315.00  6,166  315.00 
8.65% Tax Free Bonds, Tranche II, Series 3A, 24-MAR-2034 5,000  6,384  319.20  6,384  319.20 

NaƟonal Thermal Power CorporaƟon Limited
8.66% Tax Free Bonds, Series 3A, 16-DEC-2033 1,000  31,665  316.65  31,665  316.65 
7.37% Tax Free Bonds, Series 3A, 05-OCT-2035 1,000  4,997  49.97 – –

Power Finance CorporaƟon Limited
8.16% Tax Free Bonds, Series 80 B, 25-NOV-2026 1,00,000  400  400.00  400  400.00 
7.35% Tax Free Bonds, Series 3A, 17-OCT-2035 1,000  2,567  25.67 – –

Rural ElectrificaƟon CorporaƟon Limited
Zero Coupon Bonds, 15-DEC-2020 30,000  2,000  268.20  2,000  268.20 
8.46% Tax Free Bonds, Tranche I, Series 2A, 24-SEP-2028 1,000  50,000  500.00  50,000  500.00 

Carried Over ... 6,968.27 6,312.40
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Face 
Value

per share/ 
unit (`)

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

 Shares / 
Units  Amount 

 Shares / 
Units Amount 

Brought Forward ... 6,968.27 6,312.40
(d) Investments in Mutual Funds

Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund
Birla Sun Life Fixed Term Plan - Series EN - Growth 10 – – *  20,00,000.000  200.00 

Goldman Sachs Mutual Fund
Goldman Sachs NiŌy Exchange Traded Scheme 10 – – 72,000.000  500.15 
Goldman Sachs CPSE Exchange Traded Scheme 10 – – 3,85,000.000 100.42

HDFC Mutual Fund
HDFC FMP 1875D August 2013 (1) Series 27 - Direct - Growth 10  50,00,000.000  500.00  50,00,000.000  500.00 
HDFC FMP 1167D January 2016 (1) Series 35 - Direct Growth 10  50,00,000.000  501.99 – –

ICICI PrudenƟal Mutual Fund
ICICI PrudenƟal FMP Series 69 - 1821 Days Plan I Regular Plan CumulaƟve 10  50,00,000.000  500.00  50,00,000.000  500.00
ICICI PrudenƟal FMP Series 77 - 1151 Days Plan S Direct CumulaƟve 10  20,00,000.000  200.00 – –

Kotak Mahindra Mutual Fund
Kotak FMP Series 181 Direct - Growth 10  30,00,000.000  300.00 – –

L&T Mutual Fund
L&T FMP - VII (April 1124D A) - Growth 10 – –  *  50,00,000.000  500.00 

Reliance Mutual Fund
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund - XXIII - Series 8 - Direct Growth Plan 10 – –  *  50,00,000.000  500.00 
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund - XXIV - Series 2 - Growth Plan 10 – –  *  50,00,000.000  500.00 
Reliance Capital Builder Fund II- Series A - Dividend Plan - Dividend 
Payout 10

 
30,00,000.000 

 
300.00 

 
30,00,000.000 

 
300.00 

Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund - XXVIII - Series 14 - Growth Plan 10  30,00,000.000  300.00  30,00,000.000  300.00 
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund - XXVIII - Series 18 - Direct - Growth Plan 10  20,00,000.000  200.00 – –

UTI Mutual Fund
UTI Fixed Term Income Fund Series XXII-VIII (1099 Days) -
Direct Growth Plan 10

 
30,00,000.000  300.00 

  
– –

 B. Non Trade Investments (Unquoted)
(a) Investments in Equity Instruments - Fully paid-up

Cheviot InternaƟonal Limited 10  20 –  20 –
Woodlands MulƟspeciality Hospital Limited 10  3,190  0.32  3,190  0.32 

(b) Investments in Mutual Funds
Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund

Birla Sun Life India Reforms Fund - Dividend - Regular Plan - Payout 10  52,39,765.204  573.23  52,38,459.369  700.00 
Birla Sun Life Frontline Equity Fund - Dividend - Regular Plan - Payout 10  27,42,583.223  624.47  9,71,188.087  300.00 

Franklin Templeton Mutual Fund
Franklin India High Growth Companies Fund - Dividend Payout 10  19,47,930.566  500.00 – –

HDFC Mutual Fund
HDFC Equity Fund - Dividend - Payout 10  17,26,932.322  978.39  26,47,605.736  1,500.00 
HDFC Mid-Cap OpportuniƟes Fund - Dividend - Payout 10  7,67,548.068  201.57  30,40,334.753  800.00 
HDFC Gilt Fund Long Term - Growth 10  7,03,687.675  200.00  7,03,687.675  200.00 

Carried Over ... 13,148.24 13,713.29
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Face 
Value

per share/ 
unit (`)

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

 Shares / 
Units  Amount 

 Shares / 
Units Amount 

Brought Forward ... 13,148.24 13,713.29
ICICI PrudenƟal Mutual Fund

ICICI PrudenƟal Gilt Fund Investment Plan PF - OpƟon Regular Plan 10  7,28,175.665  200.00  7,28,175.665  200.00 
ICICI PrudenƟal Value Discovery Fund - Regular Plan - Dividend Payout 10  16,02,728.191  500.00  3,48,675.035  100.00 
ICICI PrudenƟal Dynamic - Regular Plan - Dividend Payout 10  21,52,217.612  414.07  –     –   

IDFC Mutual Fund
IDFC Arbitrage Plus Fund - Direct Plan - Dividend - Payout 10  –     –    41,39,685.008  500.00 

JM Financial Mutual Fund
JM Arbitrage Advantage Fund- Bonus opƟon - Principal & Bonus units 10  –     –    20,06,505.698  200.00 
JM Arbitrage Advantage Fund - Direct - Annual Bonus opƟon - Bonus units 10  9,54,993.397  96.91 – –

J.P. Morgan Mutual Fund
JPMorgan India AcƟve Bond Fund - InsƟtuƟonal Plan - Growth OpƟon 10  –     –    49,67,808.600  500.00 
JPMorgan India Government SecuriƟes Fund - Regular Plan - 
Growth OpƟon 10

 
44,33,803.316 

 
500.00 

 
44,33,803.316  500.00 

Reliance Mutual Fund
Reliance Equity OpportuniƟes Fund - Dividend Plan - Dividend Payout 10  29,06,451.846  886.32  20,33,713.943  700.00 

SBI Mutual Fund
SBI PSU Fund - Regular Plan - Dividend Payout 10  –     –    9,91,099.923  100.00 
SBI Blue Chip Fund - Direct Plan - Dividend Payout 10  26,39,349.013  500.00 – –

UTI Mutual Fund
UTI - NIFTY Index Fund - Dividend Payout 10  –     –    21,28,795.984  350.00 

Total Non-Current Investments   16,245.54  16,863.29 
Aggregate Book value of Quoted Investments  10,070.26  10,212.97 
Market value of Quoted Investments  11,502.39  11,435.75 
Aggregate Book value of Unquoted Investments  6,175.28  6,650.32 

 * Current year figures have been shown in current investments (Refer Note 14) under the head of current maturiƟes of long-term investments as these 
are maturing within 12 months from the reporƟng date. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

(` in Lakhs)

As at 
31st March, 2016

As at 
31st March, 2015

12.    LONG - TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES  

 (unsecured, considered good)  
 Capital advances  76.57  7.51 
 Security deposits  49.09  34.12 
 Other loans and advances
     Prepaid expenses  8.92  5.84 
     Advance to employees  16.68  13.51 

 151.26  60.98 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

(` in Lakhs)

Face 
Value per 
unit (`)

 As at
31st March, 2016

 As at
31st March, 2015

Units  Amount  Units Amount 
14. CURRENT INVESTMENTS
A. Current maturiƟes of Long-Term Investments (At cost)

(a)   Investments in Debentures or Bonds - Fully paid-up (Quoted)
Indian Railway Finance CorporaƟon Limited  

6.30%   Tax Free Bonds, Series 68 A, 08-MAR-2017 1,00,000  100  100.00 *  –     –   
India Infoline Finance Limited

NiŌy Linked Debenture 04-JUL-2016 1,00,000  160  203.36 *  –     –   
(b)   Investments in Mutual Funds (Quoted)

Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund
Birla Sun Life Fixed Term Plan - Series FE - Growth 10  –     –    20,00,000.000  200.00 
Birla Sun Life Fixed Term Plan - Series EN - Growth 10  20,00,000.000  200.00 *  –    –

ICICI PrudenƟal Mutual Fund
ICICI PrudenƟal FMP Series 63 - 3 years Plan H CumulaƟve 10  –     –    20,00,000.000  200.00 
ICICI PrudenƟal FMP Series 63 - 3 years Plan M CumulaƟve 10  –     –    50,00,000.000  500.00 

L&T Mutual Fund
L&T FMP - VII (April 1124D A) - Growth 10  50,00,000.000  500.00 *  –    –

Reliance Mutual Fund
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund - XXIII - Series 8 -
Direct Growth Plan 10  50,00,000.000  500.00 *

 
–    –

Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund - XXIV - Series 2 -
Growth Plan 10

 
50,00,000.000  500.00 * – –

Total current maturiƟes of Long-Term Investments  2,003.36  900.00 
B. Other Current Investments (At lower of cost and fair value)

Investments in Mutual Funds (Unquoted)
Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund

Birla Sun Life Cash Plus - Growth - Direct Plan 100  2,05,694.450  500.00  4,45,875.662  1,000.00 
BOI AXA Mutual Fund

BOI AXA Equity Fund - Regular Plan - Quarterly Dividend - 
Payout 10 – –

 
11,67,542.323 

 
130.06 

ICICI PrudenƟal Mutual Fund
ICICI PrudenƟal Equity Arbitrage Fund- Regular Plan - 
Dividend Payout 10 – –

 
14,46,842.989 

 
199.19 

Carried Over ... 500.00 1,329.25

As at 
31st March, 2016

As at 
31st March, 2015

13.   OTHER NON - CURRENT ASSETS   

 Others
    Fixed deposit accounts with bank (maturity over 12 months) *  299.55  300.60 
    Interest accrued on fixed deposits  0.53  0.39 
    Indirect taxes refundable [net of provision ` 7.48 (Previous year `  7.48)]  41.66  25.83 
    Advance payment of tax and refund due  5.77  5.77 

 347.51  332.59 

 * Under lien towards margin money and / or security against borrowings.
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(` in Lakhs)

Face 
Value per 
unit (`)

 As at
31st March, 2016

 As at
31st March, 2015

Units  Amount  Units Amount 
Brought Forward ... 500.00 1,329.25

JM Financial Mutual Fund
JM Balanced Fund - Dividend opƟon - Payout 10 – –  7,88,948.411  104.57 

Sundaram Mutual Fund
Sundaram Growth Fund -Regular Plan - Dividend Payout 10 – –  12,63,152.576  146.83 

Total Other Current Investments  500.00  1,580.65 
Total Current Investments  2,503.36  2,480.65
Aggregate Book value of Quoted Investments  2,003.36  900.00 
Market value of Quoted Investments  2,537.57  1,144.33 
Aggregate Book value of Unquoted Investments  500.00  1,580.65 

 * Represents transfer from non-current investments (Refer Note 11) as these are maturing within 12 months from the reporƟng date.

As at 
31st March, 2016

As at 
31st March, 2015

15.   INVENTORIES   

 Raw materials  3,174.57  2,714.79 
 Work-in-progress   610.38  392.00 
 Finished goods [includes in transit ` 52.93 (Previous year ` 229.03)]  1,920.30  1,180.52 
 Stores and spares [includes in transit ` 3.83 (Previous year ` Nil)]  223.07  237.92 
 Loose tools  0.60  0.63 

 5,928.92  4,525.86 

16.   TRADE RECEIVABLES   

 (unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated) 
 Outstanding for a period exceeding six months 
    Considered good  94.52  1.36 
    Doubƞul  11.96  –   
    Less : Provision for doubƞul receivables  (11.96)  –   
 Other receivables 
    Considered good  2,875.75  2,462.40 
    Doubƞul  –    13.30 
    Less : Provision for doubƞul receivables  –    (13.30)

 2,970.27  2,463.76 
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As at 
31st March, 2016

As at 
31st March, 2015

17.   CASH AND BANK BALANCES   

 Cash and cash equivalents 
 Cash on hand  8.46  7.25 
 Balances with banks 
      in current accounts  715.55  572.98 

 724.01  580.23 
 Other bank balances 
      Fixed deposit accounts *  2.09  100.89 
      FracƟonal bonus share account  0.44  0.44 
      Unpaid dividend accounts  114.60  69.89 

 117.13  171.22 
 841.14  751.45 

*     Under lien ` 2.09 (Previous year ` 0.89) towards margin money.  
  Fixed deposit accounts with maturity of more than 12 months amounƟng to ` 299.55 (Previous year ` 300.60) being   

 non-current has been shown under the head other non-current assets (Refer Note 13).

19.   OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

 Interest accrued on investments, fixed and security deposits  107.45  95.65 
 Government grants receivable  368.29  218.53 
 Indirect taxes refundable    5.92  103.33 
 Other receivables *  51.46  29.42 

 533.12  446.93 

  * Includes primarily amount receivable against dividend, insurance claims, statutory dues.

18.    SHORT - TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES   

(unsecured, considered good)  
Others 

 Balances with customs, excise etc.   0.01  –   
 Excise duty paid under protest *  110.73  110.73 
 Indirect taxes paid againt demand  185.65  –   
 Excess of plan assets over defined benefit obligaƟon (Refer Note 44)  383.38  312.63 
 Prepaid expenses  143.39  109.28 
 Other loans and advances **  155.90  80.13 

 979.06  612.77 

* Amount paid "Under Protest" pursuant to the final order dated 16th March, 2010 of the Tribunal against which an 
appeal is pending before the Hon'ble Supreme Court.

** Includes primarily advance against purchases, loans to employees. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016
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For the Year Ended
31st March, 2016

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2015

20.   REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of products (Jute goods)  33,880.62  26,496.62 
Other operaƟng revenues  652.60  349.43 
Revenue from operaƟons (gross)  34,533.22  26,846.05 
Less : Jute manufacturing cess  229.42  146.52 
Revenue from operaƟons (net)  34,303.80  26,699.53 

21.   OTHER INCOME
Interest income
   On long-term investments  394.16  434.73 
   On fixed deposits  30.00  37.18 
   Others  2.69  1.97 

 426.85  473.88 
Dividend income 
   On long-term investments  500.55  324.25 
   On current investments  28.69  237.45 

 529.24  561.70 
Net gain on sale of investments
   On long-term investments  49.39  951.72 
   On current investments  39.35  39.61 

 88.74  991.33 

Net gain on foreign currency transacƟons and translaƟon (other than 
considered as finance cost)  194.40  121.74 
Other non-operaƟng income  32.43  18.08 

 1,271.66  2,166.73 

22.   COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Raw jute  17,972.08  12,016.66 
Jute yarn  1,285.53  1,288.15 
Others  3.62  2.17 

 19,261.23  13,306.98 

23.   CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS
Closing stock
Finished goods  1,920.30  1,180.52 
Work-in-progress  610.38  392.00 

 2,530.68  1,572.52 
Opening stock
Finished goods  1,180.52  1,349.75 
Work-in-progress  392.00  432.03 

 1,572.52  1,781.78 
 (958.16)  209.26 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

(` in Lakhs)
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For the year ended
 31st March, 2016

For the year ended
 31st March, 2015

24.   EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES   

Salaries, wages, bonus etc.  5,010.53  4,091.83 
ContribuƟon to provident and other funds  573.65  513.62 
Staff welfare expenses  74.66  72.96 

 5,658.84  4,678.41 

25.   FINANCE COSTS   

Interest expenses  75.58  76.69 
Other borrowing costs  11.99  10.03 
Applicable net gain on foreign currency transacƟons and translaƟon  (5.94) –

 81.63  86.72 

26.   DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE 

DepreciaƟon and amorƟsaƟon (Refer Note 10)  572.93  648.26 
 572.93  648.26 

27.   OTHER EXPENSES   

ConsumpƟon of stores and spare parts (Refer Note 34)  1,847.17  1,572.40 
Power and fuel  1,513.45  1,651.77 
Processing charges  410.17  197.80 
Rent  64.24  42.14 
Rates and taxes  26.48  20.02 
Repairs to buildings  419.46  145.30 
Repairs to machinery  127.61  108.89 
Repairs to others  390.25  327.43 
Insurance  71.33  72.59 
Expenditure towards CSR (Refer Note 35)  73.27  75.00 
Delivery charges  450.90  834.33 
Jute manufacturing cess  (Refer Note 36)  39.49  118.47 
Miscellaneous expenses  418.51  396.50 
DiminuƟon in value of current investments  –    219.35 
Provision for doubƞul receivables  (1.34)  13.30 
Payment to auditors
   Audit fees  5.15  3.93 
   For other services  4.21  3.01 
   For reimbursement of expenses  0.34  0.29 

 5,860.69  5,802.52 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016
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For the year ended
 31st March, 2016

For the year ended
 31st March, 2015

28.   EARNINGS PER SHARE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACCOUNTING STANDARD (AS) - 20   

Net Profit aŌer tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss  3,647.47  3,458.09 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  45,11,250  45,11,250 
Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share (in `) 80.85 76.65
Face value per ordinary share (in `)  10.00  10.00 

29. Based on the valuaƟon report by a Chartered Engineer, an external valuer, certain fixed assets of the Company's DTA 
unit were revalued, on appraisal method as follows :

 a) Freehold land was revalued in the years ended 31st March, 1997, 31st March, 2003 and 31st March, 2008 with 
last revalued amount at ` 6,257.10. Freehold land has further been revalued at  ` 9,647.26 on 31st March, 2016, 
resulƟng in increase in the net book value of the said asset by ` 3,390.16 with a corresponding credit to the 
revaluaƟon reserve account;

 b) Buildings were revalued in the years ended 31st March, 1997 and 31st March, 2003 with last revalued amount 
at ` 4,165.09;

 c) Plant & equipment and electrical installaƟons were revalued in the years ended 31st March, 1998 and 
31st March, 2003 with last revalued amount at ` 7,083.95 and ` 415.93 respecƟvely.

30. Capital commitments not provided for at the date of this balance sheet are esƟmated at ` 893.86 (Previous year 
` 1.27) in respect of tangible assets and ` 6.36 (Previous year ` 9.03) in respect of intangible assets aŌer neƫng of 
advances paid.

31. Computer soŌware comprising of Oracle ERP SoŌware, considered material, has a carrying amount of ̀  72.08 (Previous 
year ` 81.19), as on 31st March, 2016, to be amorƟsed over the remaining period of seven years and eleven months.  

32. Based on the informaƟon available with the Company, the principal amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises, as 
defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) is ` Nil (Previous 
year ` Nil). Further, no interest during the year has been paid or payable under the terms of the MSMED Act, 2006.

33. Due to insolvency of a party, appearing under trade receivable, claim had been lodged with the Official Administrator, 
appointed by the Court, for outstanding amount of Euro 100612.56 and for related expenses incurred. The Company 
has received claim against said receivable to the extent of 80% of the original Invoice amount from ECGC Ltd. under 
its buyer exposure policy, credited under trade payable, with a conƟngency that out of the amount received from 
the party, 80% thereof is reimbursable to ECGC Ltd. Accordingly, provision for doubƞul receivables, has been made in 
respect of outstanding amount as on 31st March, 2016, net of amount recovered from ECGC Ltd.

34. Total stores and spare parts consumed during the year are ` 2,310.43 (Previous year ` 1,869.21) and include
` 463.26 (Previous year ` 296.81) debited to relevant expense heads.

35. Expenditure towards corporate social responsibility (CSR) :

 a)  As per SecƟon 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, gross amount required to be spent by the Company for  
expenditure towards CSR during the year is ` 72.78 (Previous year ` 74.64).    

 b)  Amount spent during the year on :

In cash  Yet to be paid  in cash Total
(i)   ConstrucƟon/acquisiƟon of any asset           –   –              –   
(ii)  On purposes other than (i) above 73.27 –   73.27

 c) Amount spent during the year includes an amount of ̀  40.00 (Previous year ̀  65.00) contributed to Jan Priya Trust, 
a registered trust over which a key management person and his relaƟves have a significant influence. 
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36. Jute manufacturing cess, debited under other expenses in Note 27, includes increase / (decrease) in cess, on 
account of difference between the closing and opening stock of finished goods amounƟng to ` 4.89 [Previous year 
(` 3.24)].

37. DerivaƟve instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure :

 a)  The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its exposures in foreign currency. Forward exchange 
contracts for trade receivables outstanding as at balance sheet date is ` 540.84 (Previous year ` 72.97).

 b)  Forward cover for firm commitment in respect of future sales against export order as at balance sheet date is 
` 1,369.96 (Previous year ` 148.39). The mark to market gain thereon amounƟng to ` 24.95 (Previous year 
` 26.08) has not been accounted for due to prudent accounƟng policy.    

 c)  Foreign currency exposure (net) at year end that are not hedged by derivaƟve instruments or otherwise is 
` 619.23 (Previous year ` 1,215.24).        

For the year ended
 31st March, 2016

For the year ended
 31st March, 2015

38.   VALUE OF IMPORTS ON CIF BASIS   

Raw materials  3,031.15  1,955.48 
Components and spare parts 110.43  137.53 
Capital goods 385.33  31.06 

3,526.91  2,124.07 

39.   EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY   

Interest 6.32 –
Travelling  20.53  22.80 
Delivery charges  31.64  81.78 
Others 16.39  21.55 

74.88  126.13 

40.   EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE   

F.O.B. value of exports 10,259.06 11,312.46
10,259.06 11,312.46

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016
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For the year ended
 31st March, 2016

For the year ended
 31st March, 2015

Value % Value %
41.   VALUE OF RAW MATERIALS, SPARE PARTS AND COMPONENTS CONSUMED   

Raw materials
Imported  3,150.57 16.36  1,995.10 14.99
Indigenous  16,110.66 83.64  11,311.88 85.01

 19,261.23 100.00  13,306.98 100.00
Spare parts and components
Imported  112.40 4.86  139.06 7.44
Indigenous 2,198.03 95.14  1,730.15 92.56

2,310.43 100.00  1,869.21 100.00

For the year ended
 31st March, 2016

For the year ended
 31st March, 2015

42.   PARTICULARS RELATING TO DIVIDEND PAID TO NON-RESIDENT SHAREHOLDERS   

FINAL
Number of non-resident shareholders *  112  90 
Number of shares held by them  48,646  62,543 
Dividend relaƟng to the year  2014-15  2013-14 
Amount of dividend (`)  8.27  9.38 
Amount remiƩed in foreign currency (`)  –   –
INTERIM
Number of non-resident shareholders *  160 –
Number of shares held by them  45,651 –
Dividend relaƟng to the year  2015-16 –
Amount of dividend (`)  7.76 –
Amount remiƩed in foreign currency (`) – –
* Includes shares held by custodians of enemy property

43. ACCOUNTING OF GOVERNMENT GRANTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS-12     
 Government grants received by the Company comprise of capital incenƟve of ` 46.15 (Previous year ` 10.31), export 

incenƟves of ` 604.57 (Previous year ` 303.03) and other revenue grants of ` 8.36 (Previous year ` 2.88).

44. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS DISCLOSURES IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS-15 (REVISED)

 i.  Defined ContribuƟon Plans 

  The Company has during the year recognised an expense of ` 573.65 (Previous year ` 513.62) towards defined 
contribuƟon plans.

  Out of the total contribuƟon, made for employees’ provident fund, a sum of ` 78.01 (Previous year ` 74.60) has 
been made to Cheviot Company Limited Employees’ Provident Fund while the remaining contribuƟon has been 
made to the provident fund plan operated by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. Further, considering 
the past track and fair value of the plan assets of the Trust, the Company does not envisage any shorƞall in liability 
towards the interest payable by the Trust at the noƟfied interest rate.
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 ii. Defined Benefit Plans

For the year ended
 31st March, 2016

For the year ended
 31st March, 2015

The defined benefit plan in respect of gratuity, being funded by 
the Company, is as follows :

a. Change in defined benefit obligaƟon :
Present value of obligaƟon, at the beginning of the year  2,417.69  2,862.02 
Current service cost  214.29  202.28 
Interest cost  191.36  211.19 
Benefits paid  (212.57)  (519.19)
Actuarial gain  (257.58)  (338.61)
Present value of obligaƟon, at the end of the year  2,353.19  2,417.69 

b. Change in fair value of plan assets :
Plan assets at the beginning of the year  2,730.32  2,662.23 
Expected return on plan assets  209.92  215.70 
ContribuƟons by the employer –  199.79 
Actuarial gain  8.90  171.79 
Benefits paid  (212.57)  (519.19)
Plan assets at the end of the year  2,736.57  2,730.32 

c. Amount recognised in Balance Sheet :
Present value of defined benefit obligaƟon  2,353.19  2,417.69 
Fair value of plan assets  2,736.57  2,730.32 
Net asset recognised in Balance Sheet  383.38  312.63 

d. Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss :
Current service cost  214.29  202.28 
Interest cost  191.36  211.19 
Expected return on plan assets  (209.92)  (215.70)
Net actuarial gain  (266.48)  (510.40)
Total expenses  (70.75)  (312.63)

e. ConsƟtuƟon of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets :
Government of India/Government of India guaranteed  securiƟes 18.07% 21.30%
State Government/State Government guaranteed securiƟes 34.80% 35.03%
Bonds 37.04% 37.62%
Units of money market mutual fund 0.63% 0.45%
Units of equity linked schemes of mutual funds 1.41% 1.18%
Cash at bank and receivables (net) 8.05% 4.42%
Total 100.00% 100.00%
There is no amount included in the fair value of plan assets 
for :
i.   Company's own financial instrument;
ii.  Any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the 
     Company.
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f. Experience Adjustments :
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

1. Defined benefit obligaƟon  2,353.19  2,417.69  2,862.02  2,736.28  2,352.72 
2. Plan assets  2,736.57  2,730.32  2,662.23  2,379.29  2,000.83 
3. Surplus/(Deficit)  383.38  312.63  (199.79)  (356.99)  (351.89)
4. Experience adjustments (gain)/loss on plan liabiliƟes  16.69  46.21  (66.55)  420.66  (4.46)
5. Experience adjustments gain/(loss) on plan assets  8.90  171.79  (57.30)  (5.33)  (25.41)

g. Principal actuarial assumpƟons at the Balance Sheet date :

 For the year ended
 31st March, 2016

For the year ended
 31st March, 2015

Discount rate 8.00% 8.00%
EsƟmated rate of return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00%
Salary escalaƟon 9.00% 9.00%

  Expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the average long-term rate of return expected on investments of 
the funds during the esƟmated term of the obligaƟons.      

  The Company is expected to contribute ` Nil to the gratuity fund during the year ending 31st March, 2017. 
  The esƟmates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuaƟon, take account of inflaƟon, seniority, 

promoƟon and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment. 
 h. General descripƟon of the defined plans :     
  i Gratuity Plan     
   This is a funded defined benefit plan for qualifying employees. The Company makes contribuƟons to the Cheviot 

Company Limited Employees' Gratuity Trust Fund. Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company 
on superannuaƟon, death, permanent disablement and on resignaƟon/terminaƟon of employment in terms of 
the Provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act or as per the Company’s rule, whichever is more beneficial to the 
employee.       

  ii Leave Plan     
   Eligible employees can carry forward and encash leave on superannuaƟon, death, permanent disablement and 

on resignaƟon/terminaƟon of employment in accordance with the Company’s scheme subject to a maximum 
of 45 days depending on the grade/category of employee.

45.  SEGMENT REPORTING IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS - 17     
The Company is engaged in a single business segment i.e. manufacturing and sale of Jute goods. Hence, disclosure 
requirements as required by AccounƟng Standard - 17 are not applicable in respect of business segment. However, the 
geographical segments considered for disclosure are as under : 

Within India Outside India Total
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

Sales (gross)  23,327.28  14,523.15  10,553.34  11,973.47  33,880.62  26,496.62 
Carrying amount of segment assets  45,078.37  39,756.23  –    –    45,078.37  39,756.23 
Capital expenditure  663.42  262.54  –    –    663.42  262.54 
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46. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS - 18 
 A. RelaƟonships 
  1. Controlling Group
   i. Holding Company : 
    Harsh Investments Private Limited (HIPL)
   ii. Others :
    a. Abhyadoot Finance and Investments Private Limited (AFIPL)
    b. Cheviot Agro Industries Private Limited (CAIPL) 
    c. Cheviot InternaƟonal Limited (CIL) 
    d. Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria (Mr. H.V. Kanoria) 
    e. Mrs. MalaƟ Kanoria (Wife of Mr. H.V. Kanoria) 
    f. Mr. Utkarsh Kanoria (Son of Mr. H.V. Kanoria)
  2. Key Management Personnel 
   i. Mr. H. V. Kanoria
   ii.   Mr. N. K. Kejriwal
  3. RelaƟves of Key Management Personnel 
   i. Mrs. MalaƟ Kanoria (Wife of Mr. H.V. Kanoria)
   ii.   Mr. Utkarsh Kanoria (Son of Mr. H. V. Kanoria)
   iii. Mrs. Bimla Kejriwal (Wife of Mr. N.K. Kejriwal)
  4. Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel [specified in Para 2 (i) above] and relaƟves of Key 

Management Personnel [specified in Para 3 (i) & (ii) above] have significant influence.
   i. Jan Priya Turst      
   ii.  Bright & Shine Micro Products Pvt. Ltd. (BSMPPL)
 B.  The following transacƟons were carried out with the related parƟes in the ordinary course of business :

TransacƟons/
Nature of RelaƟonship

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 For the year ended 31st March, 2015

Controlling
Group

Key
Management

Personnel

RelaƟves 
of Key 

Management 
Personnel

Enterprises 
over which Key 
Management 
Personnel & 

relaƟves of Key 
Management 
Personnel as 

stated above have 
significant
 influence

Total

Controlling
Group

Key
Management

Personnel

RelaƟves
of Key 

Management 
Personnel

Enterprises 
over which Key 
Management 
Personnel & 

relaƟves of Key 
Management 
Personnel as 
stated above 

have significant 
influence

Total

Sale of goods  –   –   –  0.37 0.37  –   –   –   –   –  
Jan Priya Trust  –   –   –  0.37 0.37  –   –   –   –   –  
Rendering of services  4.02  –     –  0.12  4.14  4.02  –   –    0.12   4.14 
CIL  2.64  –     –  –  2.64  2.64  –   –     –   2.64 
CAIPL  1.20  –     –  –  1.20  1.20  –   –     –   1.20 
Others 0.18  –     –   0.12  0.30  0.18  –   –    0.12  0.30 
Receiving of services  –  306.98 30.80  –  337.78  –  224.72 21.80 – 246.52
Mr. H.V. Kanoria  –   266.49  –     –  266.49  –   184.65  –     –     184.65 
Mr. N.K. Kejriwal  –   40.49  –     –  40.49  –   40.07  –     –     40.07 
Others  –  – 30.80  – 30.80  –  – 21.80 –  21.80
Dividend paid  1,150.33  0.10  0.10  –  1,150.53  507.50  0.05  0.05 –  507.60 
HIPL  875.19  –     –     –  875.19  386.11  –     –     –     386.11 
Mr. H.V. Kanoria  116.91 – –  –  116.91  51.58 – – –  51.58 
Others  158.23  0.10  0.10  –  158.43  69.81  0.05  0.05 –  69.91
CSR expenditure – – –  40.00  40.00 – – –  65.00  65.00 
Jan Priya Trust –  –    –  40.00  40.00 – – –  65.00  65.00 

There being no doubƞul debts, no provision has been made and no amount has been wriƩen off or wriƩen back during the year in respect of related party 
transacƟons.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016
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47. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS - 29
 a. In accordance with AS - 29 – “Provisions, ConƟngent LiabiliƟes and ConƟngent Assets”, the Company as a prudent 

measure, has made following provisions in the books :

For the year ended
 31st March, 2016

For the year ended
 31st March, 2015

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES Indirect taxes Indirect taxes
Balance at the beginning of the year  186.12  186.12 
AddiƟonal provision during the year  –    –   
Provision used during the year  –   –
Provision reversed during the year  –   –
Balance at the end of the year  186.12  186.12 

  Provision for conƟngencies represents esƟmates made mainly for probable claims arising out of disputes pending 
with the authoriƟes under various statutes. The probability and Ɵming of the ouƞlow with regard to these maƩers 
depend on the ulƟmate seƩlement / conclusion with the relevant authoriƟes.

 b. ConƟngent liabiliƟes not provided for :     
  i.    Sales Tax in dispute - ` 82.88 (Previous year ` 16.49) under appeal and not acknowledged as debt, against 

which a sum aggregaƟng to ` 46.06 has been deposited Ɵll date (Previous year ` Nil).
  ii.   Income Tax in dispute - ` 162.68 (Previous year ` 236.27) under appeal and not acknowledged as debt.
  iii.  Wealth Tax in dispute - ` 222.75 (Previous year ` 222.75) under appeal and not acknowledged as debt.
  iv.   Excise Duty including penalty in dispute - ` 4,949.99 and interest thereon (amount not yet quanƟfied) 

(Previous year ` 2,475.00 against show cause cum demand noƟce) under appeal before CESTAT, being 
barred by limitaƟon as per legal opinion was not acknowledged as debt and against which ` 185.62 has 
been deposited (Previous year ` Nil).

  v.   Service Tax in dispute - ` 1.44 (Previous year ` 1.44) against show cause noƟce not acknowledged as debt, 
for which appropriate reply has been furnished and maƩer not yet adjudicated.

  vi.  AddiƟonal bonus liability for the previous year ended 31st March, 2015 amounƟng to ` 127.94 (Previous 
year ` Nil) not acknowledged by the Company on account of judicial pronouncements including interim stay 
granted against retrospecƟve amendment of The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965, pending adjudicaƟon.

48. The Company is maintaining separate books of account for its different undertakings viz, DTA at Budge Budge and EOU 
at Falta, SEZ. EffecƟve from 1st April 2015, operaƟons of the Company’s CapƟve Power Plant [CPP] unit have been 
combined with DTA unit since the CPP unit is not required to funcƟon as an independent unit due to compleƟon of 
exempƟon period available under SecƟon 80-IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

49. The Company had paid interim dividend of ` 17/- per ordinary share of the face value of ` 10/- each amounƟng 
to ` 766.91 during the year ended 31st March, 2016. No further final dividend was recommended by the Board of 
directors for the year ended 31st March, 2016 (Previous year - dividend of ` 17/- per ordinary share amounƟng to 
` 766.91 was recommended).  

50. The previous year's figures have been re-grouped/re-classified to conform to the current year's classificaƟon.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016
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